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THE ASSOCIATION

Background:

The Kingston College Old Boys’ Association 
USA, Inc. (KCOBA) is a not-for-profit {IRS Code 
501(c)3} organization formed in 1982 and incorpo-
rated under the laws of the State of New York in 
1984. Its members are predominantly former stu-
dents of the all-boys’ school Kingston College, in 
Jamaica, West Indies. The term “Old Boy” is the 
British equivalent of “Alumnus” in the USA, and 
underscores the residual influence of Britain on 
Jamaica’s educational system.

Mission:

The mission of KCOBA is to be an advocate and 
reliable resource of financial and material aid for 
Kingston College. This will be achieved through 
the following:

•  Promoting the interest of Kingston College 
 and those who attended that institution;
• Upholding and perpetuating its teachings;
• Promoting a better understanding of, and an  
 appreciation for the cultural heritage of 
 Jamaica;
• Developing economic and social ideas for the  
 betterment of the human family in general and  
 Kingston College Old Boys in particular; and,
• Conducting fund-raising activities to 
 accumulate financial resources to assist 
 needy stu dents and underwrite the cost of 
 special projects at Kingston College, and 
 support deserving local charities in the USA.

Vision:

KCOBA will ensure that Kingston College contin-

ues to be a beacon of hope for its student popula-
tion. Computer literacy will be insisted upon, as 
we believe that this is fundamental to being suc-
cessful in this third millennium. Kingston College 
must maintain its tradition of being an inexhaust-
ible student reservoir of excellent scholarship and 
good moral character from which Jamaica’s future 
leaders will emerge.

Operations:

A seventeen (23) member Board of Directors com-
prising a President, two Vice-Presidents, Secretary, 
Treasurer, 18 Directors and 5 Life Directors cur-
rently coordinates the activities of KCOBA. Mem-
bership is open to all former students of Kingston 
College and Board-approved members of the pub-
lic. Annual membership dues of $50 (Member) or 
$25 (Associate Member) are required to authen-
ticate membership and enjoy the attendant privi-
leges.

Since its formation, KCOBA has upheld its stated 
mission, providing Kingston College with science 
laboratory equipment, school neckties, sports 
equipment, scholarships, student awards, and 
recognizing dedicated and outstanding teachers 
and supporters of Kingston College. The Associa-
tion has also provided assistance in the area of 
physical plant maintenance.

Tax Benefit:

All contributions to KCOBA are tax-deductible to 
the extent allowable by federal government laws.

Visit us @ www.kcobany.org
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Errol Lecky, Winston L. Stewart  
Dennis Jolly, Percy Ferguson  
Patrick Black, Esmond Scott  
Oliver Smith, Keith Mahoney  
Donald Bookal, Basil Wilson  
Kingsley Mitchell, Brian Panton  
Michael Bromfield, Karl Hector*  
Errol McFarlane, Mark Al1wood   
Jefferson Barnes, Hugh Campbell 
Royston Bloomfield,  
Glenville Simmonds,  
Gary Walker,  

Kitson Blissett, Everton Carless  
Brian Morrison, Howard Barrett 
Horace Gascott, Egbert Hall* 
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Clive Davidson  
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Ansell Barrett  
Clinton Clark  
Alimi Banjoko  
Rainford “Perry” Bloomfield  
Alton Brown  
Merrick Foster 
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Everton Howell  
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Jermoth “Bobby” Dixon 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (1982-2012) 

  

  CURRENT BOARD MEMBERS 

 

                      PREVIOUS BOARD MEMBERS 

The Pioneers (1982 Board) 
Sidney I. "Foggy" Burrowes"       President 
Jefferson "Jeff” Barnes                 Vice President 
Oswald "Ossie" Bartlett                Treasurer 
Aubrey "Bunny" Golding             Secretary 
Ricardo Blissett 
Basil Wilson, PhD. 
George "Peter" Jograj 
Charles Lodenquai * 
Noel C. Spencer © 
Michael Williams 
  

Since the re-birth of KCOBA, a total of 70 Old Boys have served on the board of directors. The 
initial complement of 10 has increased to 17, plus 4 life directors. 

Presidents 
Sidney I. "Foggy" Burrowes"             (1982 - 1985) 
Noel C. Spencer                                  (1985 - 1986) 
Winston L. Stewart                             (1986 - 1992) 
Michael P. Bromfield                          (1992 - 1995) 
Robert A. Kelly                                   (1995 - 1997) 
Winston L. Stewart                              (1997 - 2004) 
Everton Carless                                    (2004 - 2006) 
Robert Kelly                                        (2006 - 2011) 
Rainford ‘Perry” Bloomfield               (2011 - 2012) 
 

Notation: 
Deceased * Current ©  
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PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE

It is with a great sense of pride and conviction 
that I accepted the role of President of KCOBA 
USA Inc. this past year.  I am truly blessed to 

have walked the hallowed halls of Kingston Col-
lege and to be a part of its support system now 
and serving in the footsteps of our esteemed hon-
orees tonight, I am very proud. I am fully sub-
scribed to the Bishop Gibson story of a young in-
ner city youth who was unable to attend any of 
the then five traditional high schools. However, 
he received a scholarship, made the very best of 
the opportunity, and graduated with honors. The 
young Christian climbed through the ranks of the 
Anglican Church due to his hard work and service. 
Later, he established Kingston College, with the 
mission to mold young inner city boys to become 
Christian men and future leaders of society. 

Our history book tells us that KCOBA New York 
was first established in the early 1940s. Later, af-
ter being dormant for several years the associa-
tion was revived in 1982, thanks to Mr. Ignatius 
“Foggy” Burrows and others, some of who are 
present here tonight. Since then this association 
has given outstanding support to the develop-
ment of Kingston College. Tonight our theme is 
“Honoring those who serve”, and it is fitting that 
our three honorees are gentlemen who have been 
humble servants of this association for almost 
thirty years. These three stalwarts, Robert A. Kel-
ly, Calvin “Collie” Hibbert and Norman Scott, have 
selflessly given time and used their own funds to 
help younger members of the Kingston College 
family. In addition to our honorees, I would also 
like to thank all those who have served and in-

deed those who continue to serve this associa-
tion; since 1982 about seventy old boys have vol-
unteered their time and effort to serve as board 
members. My hope for the future is that all these 
gentlemen whether or not they are on the board 
will continue to support the efforts of the associa-
tion. Indeed, the association can only be stronger 
if we are able to build and expand on the network 
and support what has been built over the last three 
decades. Each new board and each new member 
should be viewed as an extension to the current 
foundation and their work should be focused on 
increasing the reach of the association. 

KCOBA USA Inc. contributes to several efforts 
yearly.  These include the Scholarship program 
benefiting students at KC, UWI, UTECH, Cuba, 
and USA, the Nutrition Program, the Joyce Bax-
ter Math Club, the annual Prize Giving exercise 
as well as support to several sports teams.  The 
Sports programs that benefitted from our support 
for the 2011-2012 school year were Basketball, 
Cricket, Football, Track & Field, Hockey, Rugby, 
Swimming and Table Tennis. We are also heavily 
involved in helping to maintain the facilities of KC. 
In addition to the aforementioned programs, we 
stand ready to support initiatives and events that 
arise during the course of the year. Very recently 
the association successfully coordinated a fund-
raising drive for the Chapel Choir and members 
of the choir are this weekend representing our 
country at the annual Flower Mart in Washington 
DC.  

This Association continues to benefit from the 
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generosity of the Pitman Foundation and from a 
small but dedicated group of old boys who yearly 
make generous restricted and unrestricted dona-
tions to their alma mater.  Additional funds that 
sponsors the many programs we support comes 
from our fundraising events: the Scholarship 
Dance, the Boat Ride and the Winter Dance, an 
event we co-host with our sisters from Immacu-
late. In recent years, we have also raised funds 
through our merchandising of Fortis branded 
products. Though  a lot is being accomplished, 
more can and must be achieved.  Also, emergen-
cies will arise at the school and we must be in a 
position to respond immediately.  We are focused 
on building the Fortis Network and our net worth 
so we are better positioned to respond and raise 
our level of support.  Let us celebrate “The Fortis 
Who Serve” this evening and look to a brighter fu-
ture for all here, KCOBA USA Inc and ultimately, 
Kingston College. 

Fortis Forever
Rainford ‘Perry’ Bloomfield, ‘88
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MESSAGE FROM THE 
BOARD CHAIRMAN

It is with much pleasure that I write to offer 
greetings and best wishes to the Kingston 
College Old Boys who have gathered for the 

29th Annual Reunion and Awards Dinner of the 
KCOBA USA Inc.  Please accept my best wishes 
for a successful evening as you give thanks for 
the contribution of your distinguished awardees, 
reflect on the events of the last year, and em-
brace the nostalgic reflections of our beloved 
alma mater at Melbourne Park and Clovelly.
          The Kingston College community contin-
ues to derive significant benefits from the contri-
bution of the Old Boys.  As I write, plans are be-
ing implemented to ensure the successful visit 
of the KC Chapel Choir to Washington D.C., with 
several Old Boys in North America making sig-
nificant donations to the venture.  As I write too, 
the KC track team – second in Champs, with 
more to come – is also gearing up for its annual 
foray into the Penn Relays, hopefully to bring 
glory once again to the school.  Encore une fois, 
Old Boys based in North America, Jamaica, the 

wider Caribbean and beyond, have offered sig-
nificant help in ensuring that the track team is in 
good mettle.
 It is no secret that secondary schools in 
Jamaica face sharp financial challenges.  This 
has been the way of the world for quite some 
time: but, in the midst of challenge and adver-
sity, it is gratifying to note that Old Boys, the 
Church, staff members, parents, guardians, 
students and well-wishers are keen to keep the 
purple and white standard flying high.
          On behalf of the Board of Kingston Col-
lege, I wish you God’s richest blessings as you 
go about your daily lives.  With gratitude and 
respect to those who have served the College, 
we should all remain steadfast in loyalty for the 
wonderful institution that has nurtured us.
        Fortis Cadere Cedere Non Potest.

Stephen Vasciannie
1971-present 
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Dr. Gerald Groves, M.D., Psychiatrist

Congratulations to Robert A. Kelly, and to 
KCOBA USA Inc on this the 29th Reunion & Awards
Dinner. As Kingston College celebrates 87 years of 
excellence, I am proud to be an active member of the 
Fortis Family. May we continue to work together to
promote and support Kingston College for generations
to come.

FORTIS FOREVER!

Gerald Groves, M.D., Psychiatrist,
Princeton, NJ, tel. 609-924-5757, e-mail: gagroves@gmail.com
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MESSAGE FROM KCOBA 
JAMAICA

On behalf of the KCOBA Jamaica Chapter, I 
would like to express our congratulation for 
staging yet another anticipated successful 

banquet and this one is of special significance as it 
marks Jamaica’s 50th year of Independence.  The 
New York Chapter continues to show dedication, 
loyalty and commitment to their Alma Mater.  Over 
the years, the New York Chapter has made much 
needed contribution to the school in the areas of 
academia and extracurricular activities.  They have 
been an exemplary ambassador for Jamaica in the 
Diaspora and have also made worthwhile contribu-
tion to the American society.  These are the actions 
that have enriched the legacy and spirit of Kingston 
College with each passing generation.

I want to also extend congratulations to Awardee, 
Mr. Robert Kelly who have given yeoman service 
to the New York Chapter and have been a tower of 
strength in Jamaica both at the school and KCOBA 
level where he has made significant contributions.  
Congratulations to the other awardees Calvin Hib-
bert and Norman Scott who themselves have made 
significant contributions to the Association.

We, the Jamaican Chapter continue to enjoy excel-
lent relationship with the New York Chapter and for 
the coming year we look forward to working on a 
number of projects at the school which include the 
well needed school bus and the long overdue ex-
pansion of the Douglas Forrest building.

Dr. Ray Fraser
President-Jamaica Chapter  

Fortis Forever
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MESSAGE FROM KCOBA 
FLORIDA

The call for this year’s message from KCOBA 
Florida comes at the time when we are griev-
ing the loss of Derrick ‘Shango’ Errar. It is in-

deed an extremely difficult time even now as we re-
call Shango’s easy going demeanor, his insistence 
that we chart the correct course for the common 
good of the Kingston College family at large and 
specifically for the present students. I also know of 
his quick disdain (with the flash of a hand) for any-
one who sought to be unfair in their dealings with 
another human being. He was always fully regaled 
in Purple, the indomitable spirit flourishing within 
and all around him. 
Fare thee well the Brave……….Non Potest 
always.

I had the distinct pleasure of sharing inspiring 
thoughts on the KC spirit and its mandate for all 
those who have donned the purple and white tie and 
learned at Kingston College.
The occasion was the annual meeting of the Joyce 
Baxter Math Club at Melbourne Park on CHAMPS 
Thursday. KCOB’s Rainford ‘Perry’ Bloomfield, 
Roger Edwards, Ian Mick, Pierce Parnell, O’neil 
Samms and Amos Williamson all delivered eloquent 
and passionate speeches about their KC life, Math 
experience and the keys to success. It was a very 
impressive display by this young group of Old boys 
who still feel uncomfortable with the latter reference. 
They had travelled from the UK, Atlanta, and New 
York to deliver their message on the virtues of sac-
rifice and hard work. The boys were very receptive, 
very polite and KC is in good hands.

The proverbial cloud of ‘no Principal’ continues to 
rain discomfort over KC. The path to stability is un-

even and the foundation for sustained excellence is 
being severely challenged as we venture forward 
without a permanent Principal and the imminent 
change of Board Chairman. Let us continue to pray 
for Divine intervention because wishing and hoping 
has not borne good fruit.

The continued, sustained and excellent work of the 
New York Chapter is again recognized and lauded 
by all of the Purple brothers in South Florida. The 
social, academic and extra curricula enhancement 
programs initiated and maintained through sheer 
handwork and genuine love for KC remains admi-
rable and I implore all of you to press on up the hill. 

Heartiest congratulations to the well deserving hon-
orees, Robert KC Kelly, Calvin  “Collie” Hibbert and  
Norman Scott.

Fortis Forever, Forever Fortis Cadere 
Cedere Non Potest!

Ivor Nugent
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660 N. State Road 7, Suite 4A

Plantation, Florida 33317

Telephone: (954) 371-0088

Fax: (954) 581-1924

Dr. Wayne J. M. Fraser M.D.
Diplomate American Board of Family

Practice

660 N. State Road 7, Suite 4A

Plantation, Florida 33317

Telephone: (954) 371-0088

Fax: (954) 581-1924

Hazel F. Peters, MSN, ARNP.

At the office of Dr. Wayne Fraser M.D.

 Nurse Practitioner
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MESSAGE FROM KCOBA
TORONTO

I am delighted once again to convey greetings on 
behalf of the entire Kingston College family in 
Canada.  The occasion of your 29th Annual Re-

union and Awards Dinner represents a significant 
milestone in your chapter’s history and one that 
you should be extremely proud of.  Your record 
of support for our beloved alma Mater, Kingston 
College remains second to none and may in fact 
be the standard towards which many other Alum-
ni Associations aspire.  As President of KCOBA 
Toronto, I hold much respect and admiration for 
your work and I encourage you to continue to be 
a source of support for Kingston College and an 
inspiration to many others.

It is quite noticeable that you have chosen this year 
to recognize some of the most devoted and con-
sistent members of your organization.  The effort 
of the noble gentlemen over many years is docu-
mented in the journals of past celebrations. Their 
contribution to KCOBA USA Inc is a testament to 
the teachings and ideals of the founding fathers 
of Kingston College.  My sincere congratulations 
to Robert Kelly, Calvin Hibbert, and Presidential 
Honoree Norman Scott on your well deserved rec-
ognition.  Your service to Kingston College has 
been nothing short of exemplary and I hope that 
you will all continue to be an example for other 
Kingston College Old Boys.

In closing, I extend personal congratulations to 
President Rainford ‘Perry’ Bloomfield and his hard-
working Board of Directors on another outstanding 
year of giving back to KC.  You continue to lead 

from the front and the impact of your efforts affects 
all areas of KC life including academics, athletics, 
and other extracurricular activities. Your most re-
cent effort to lead the fund raising campaign for 
the KC Chapel Choir’s Washington trip is just an-
other exemplary illustration.  I wish for you a very 
successful event and I hope that everyone in at-
tendance have a fulfilling and enjoyable evening.  
Fortis Always,

Lawrence Prendergast
President

Dr. Norman Smith M.D.
Pediatrician

Maryland Children’s 
Health Center

2905 Mitchellville Road #108
Bowie, MD 20716
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J&R West Indian 
Restaurant

Congratulates
The Honorees

&
KCOBA USA Inc. on celebrating its

29th Reunion and Awards

J&R Restaurant
Home of

Fully Loaded Disco
With

DJ Craig
294 Rogers Ave.

Brooklyn, NY  11225
718.735.4650

“Fortis Forever”

Winners Circle Radio
WVIP 93.5FM

Winners Circle Radio
WVIP 93.5FM

Tuesday thru Friday
11am to noon

“We make your heart sing”

Winners Circle Radio with Conroy Allison can be heard
Tuesday through Friday at 11am to noon on WVIP

93.5FM
Also featuring John Melbourne at 11:25am with

Winners Circle Sports
For advertising and sponsorships 

call (917) 202-2435

Congratulates
KCOBA USA Inc. on celebrating its
29th Reunion and Awards ceremony

“Come celebrate with us at our Twenty-Second
Annual  Independence Gala and Scholarship Awards

on Saturday, August 4, 2012 at Sheraton Mahwah Hotel,
Mahwah, NJ”

JAMCCAR • P.O. Box 1727    •    Spring Valley, NY 10977
Phone (845) 425-7327 / (845)735-6404     •     E-Mail: jamccarja@gmail.com

Like us on Facebook: http://www.tinyurl.com/jamccar
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MESSAGE FROM KCOBA 
ATLANTA

The theme of your 29th Annual Reunion & 
Awards Dinner, “Celebrating Fortis Who 
Serve”, is another testament to your con-

tinuous dedication to the KC spirit. As Jamaica 
celebrates its 50th independence anniversary, 
recognizing Fortis who serve our distinguish 
alma mater, is also a recognition to be celebrated 
in line with our 50th anniversary celebrations.

This year’s anniversary celebration may be spe-
cial because it is the 50th anniversary. However, 
as we reflect on what we have achieved, there 
are many reasons over those 50 years for Jamai-
cans to be proud. Your honorees at this year’s 
Dinner must themselves feel privileged to have 
contributed to that pride over those 50 years. 

Whether at home or abroad, the celebrations this 
year will reflect an intensity like no other previ-
ous anniversary celebrations. However, while we 
celebrate, let us remember that there others who 
are in need. The KC fraternity will always do our 
part in giving back to our community just as we 
have done over the years. 

I hope you have an evening of warm celebrations 
and a very successful Awards Dinner. I wish you 
all success in the year ahead and look forward to 
your Chapter’s continued support of our beloved 
alma mater, Kingston College.

Anthony Williams
President

TEL: 718-652-7800 
FAX: 718-652-7887

JEFFERYSON (JEFF) BARNES, SR. 
ATTORNEY AT LAW

3550 WHITE PLAINS RD. 
OFFICE #2 

BRONX, NY 10487
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MESSAGE FROM KCDFT 
(KINGSTON COLLEGE DEVELOPMENT TRUST FUND)

The Kingston College Development Trust Fund 
offers sincere congratulations to the KCOBA 
USA Inc. on the occasion of their 29th Annual 

Reunion & Awards Dinner. Special congratulations to 
President Rainford Bloomfield and other officers for 
their commitment and sacrifice over so many years 
towards the Alma Mater. The support of the New York 
old boys and other overseas groups cannot be over-
stated especially at a time when the Government of 
Jamaica is finding it so difficult to adequately finance 
secondary education.

The KCDTF is also grateful to the New York Old Boys 
for their support towards the building up of an invi-
olable capital endowment the earnings from which 
has been providing and will continue to provide fund-
ing for important developmental projects 

The KCDTF held its Annual General Meeting  on 
April 27, 2012  and is in the process putting together  
for publication  the Annual Report for year ending 
December 23, 2011 which will shortly be distribut-
ed to all  donors and other identified  supporters. 
Members and Directors were pleased that the tar-
get of J$50 million for the Capital Fund was reached 
in 2011 and that J$6 million is available in 2012 for 
projects to be identified by the School Board.

A Brochure on the KCDTF has been recently updated 
giving information on the Trust Fund, listing the main 
projects executed to date and providing a detach-
able section for making contributions and pledges. 
All Fortis friends are being urged to intensify their ef-
forts to recruit new regular contributors with the help 
of the brochures which can be obtained on request. 
Our great challenge is to achieve continued growth 

of the Capital Fund in a time of global recession, re-
duced interest rates and high inflation. If this is not 
achieved future projects will not be as substantial as 
necessary.

It is a great blessing to be imbued with the Fortis 
spirit. We must never relax in our efforts to turn out 
young men of whom we will be proud.
Blessings!

Woodburn D. Miller
Chairman
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MEMBERSHIP ON A NON-PROFIT BOARD IS NOT 
POWER. IT MEANS RESPONSIBILITY.

Board   membership means responsibility not just to the organization, 
but to the board itself, to the staff and to the institution’s mission.

Norman  Scott & Calvin (Collie) Hibbert 
seem to have understood this responsibility more than most  old boys who have served 
the Association. Their  patience and civility  not only helped to make our deliberations 

more productive, but they have contributed greatly to the spirit of the association.  
Their commitment and sense of duty continue to inspire all who work with them.

 For this, gentlemen, we THANK YOU..
We salute you. 

Errol G Lecky
718-282-7894 or eglecky@optonline.net
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ROBERT A. KELLY

My father, Robert Anthony Kelly was born to Sep-
timus and Gloria Kelly on February 21st, 1956, 
in Kingston, Jamaica.  His father Septimus was 

a renowned minister of the Evangelical Church of God, 
with ministries in Sandy Park and Spanish Town.  He 
also owned and operated the Colourite Tile Factory on 
Spanish Town Road, for which Gloria his wife was the 
primary bookkeeper for the business.  His initial intro-
duction to Kingston College came from over hearing a 
conversation between his father and Mr. Dyer, a promi-
nent neighbor, in his family’s car port.  Mr. Dyer was tell-
ing my grandfather about the great KC, and how he had 
sent his own son there. When asked if that might be a 
possible destination for his son Junior, my grandfather 
responded, I don’t believe Junior has the brain to attend 
such a place. There was no second or third choice come 
high school selection, the impromptu challenge was ac-
cepted.   

My father entered Kingston College in September of 
1967. His early distinctions came in the social sphere 
more so than the academic, this afforded him plenty of 
time spent after school in the headmaster’s office, Charl-
ton Bruce and Douglas Forrest.  The impact the Dougs 
relationship would make on my father could not be over-
stated.  Mr. Forrest would become his mentor and would 
play a prominent role in not only molding my father into a 
‘Fortis’ for life, but would set an example as to what role 
‘Ol Boys’ should play in impacting the lives of current 
school boys.  

It was within my father’s time as student that his love af-
fair with sports and KC was developed.  I know this per-
sonally, because as a child I would be tucked in bed to 
stories of Trevor ‘TC’ Campbell dominance of Champs 
200m, 400m, 800m, 4 x 100m, and 4 x 400m and Cor-
nelius Bruce, a non-descript athlete who at Champs in 
1972 won the Medley, running the race of his life in the 
last leg of the 800m.   My father was a product of Kings-
ton College at a moment when KC was the prevailing 

powerhouse in athletics, Champs in particular. He was 
there in the middle of KC’s unprecedented fourteen con-
secutive Champs.  I remember hearing of much of his 
own athletic achievements and obstacles, the story of 
how he became a youngster on Jimmy Richard’s Sun-
light squad and his time on the table tennis team, and 
while practicing with them every day, never making the 
‘final seven team’ in table tennis.  

He was raised in a culture of athletic success at the 
school, so even today, that has remained the standard 
of judgment.    Upon walking on the campus, success 
at the highest level, in each and every arena, was not 
an achievement, but simply the expectation. One that 
transcends sports and academics, occupations and ca-
reers, a KC man is NEVER average in anything, no mat-
ter if his current circumstances reflect that or not.  This 
core belief would serve him after leaving Kingston Col-
lege in 1973 and coming to United States at seventeen 
on his own.  

Upon coming to the United States, my father’s honey-
moon was over.  Life became   truly a struggle, work-
ing multiple jobs to support he and his mother early on, 
and later my mother, Petrolin Kelly, who he would marry 
in 1980.  He put himself through undergrad, graduate 
school, and law school despite a tremendous amount 
of personal pressures and obstacles.  He overcame a 
debilitating car accident December of 1980, after being 
hit by truck just before Christmas.  The accident would 
leave him bedridden in the hospital for months.   He 
would undergo multiple back surgeries, but the use of 
his legs would forever be changed.  He has had a drop 
foot ever since and would never run again as a result.  In 
1984 I Robert Joel Kelly was born and in 1985 my sister 
Petrolin Jule Kelly was born.   

At this time with a growing family to support, my father 
pulled all his resources together and purchased his first 
house.  In the same spirit of his father before him, he 

GUEST OF HONOR
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turned this acquisition into an entrepreneurial pursuit 
that would dramatically shift the direction of his life.  
He started a real estate and development company in 
Springfield, MA and turned it into a lucrative venture, his 
company called ARK Enterprises would later become 
the largest black owned real estate and development 
company in Western Massachusetts.  It was at the time 
as a young husband that my father was first tapped and 
reminded of his duties as a Kingston College Old Boy.  
The reintroduction to the KC family came from the late 
‘Foggy’ Burrowes, the founder of the New York KCOBA.  
With the exception of Douglas ‘Dougs” Forest and Bish-
op Gibson, my father held no other Old Boy in higher es-
teem.  The request for assistance and support could not 
be ignored; his life again would be dramatically altered 
once he chose to heed the call.       

His involvement with the KCOBA was initially by chance.  
While a law school student in 1981 my father was work-
ing on his graduating thesis entitled, “Immigration Law: A 
tool of US Foreign Policy”.  He contacted ‘Bagga’ Wilson, 
for the book, “The Black Jacobins: Toussaint L’Ouverture 
and the San Domingo Revolution”, not having the text, 
‘Bagga’ referred my father to ‘Foggy’.  A precondition to 

providing my father with the book, ‘Foggy’ asked my fa-
ther to come to a meeting.  Some sort of contribution 
would also be required.  ‘Foggy’ took every opportunity 
where an Old Boy was present for to fund raise for cur-
rent students, a lesson my father has learned well from.   
Although not yet a formal association, my father joined 
others:  whom ‘Foggy’ asked, requested, and coerced 
into attending.  Still a young Old Boy, my father’s initial 
involvement was minimal; his time was occupied still by 
school, a growing business, and young family.   As his 
business grew, so did, his the financial contributions to 
the school.   Initially, on trips to the school, he would visit 
the campus and talk with guidance counselors, coaches, 
bookstore managers, grounds keepers, choir leaders, 
cadet leaders, teachers, and administrators.   He would 
assess their needs and meet their requests right then 
and there.  He would conduct interviews with indigent 
promising students providing annual tuitions and uni-
forms for a number of students throughout the years.  

His assistance and relationship with those he has helped 
has gone past simply their school boy days.   Later, in 
large part due to the insistence of Percy Ferguson, my 
father was urged to become a formal board member.  He 
would step up what he personably contributed, contact-
ing other prominent Old Boys, they pooled resources to-
gether to fund a number of programs and scholarships, 
bringing many of these projects to the forefront.  These 
included the nutrition program, directed at first and sec-
ond year students, breakfast and lunch programs, as-
sisted Old Boys’ studying at UWI, covered exam fees, 
University Tuitions, purchased kitchen  supplies, and 
provided stipends to a number of coaches and former 
teachers.  

Robert Kelly is probably best known within KC circles for 
his time served as President of KCOBA New York.  His 
first term was from 1995-97 taking a hiatus due to health 
concerns, his second term was from 2006-11.  Since his 
retirement as President, my father’s involvement with 
KC has hardly stopped, quite the contrary, he has since 
relocated to Jamaica and is currently Plant Manager at 
Kingston College.  His commitment to Kingston College 
has never been greater, and he has been invigorated by 
what he is currently involved with, as he is able to inter-
act with current students on a day to day basis.            

By Robert Joel Kelly
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GUEST OF HONOR

Formative Years

Calvin Constantine Hibbert was born in Janu-
ary of 1942, and is the second of four children 
for his parents Clinton and Mable Hibbert. 

Approximately fifteen years later, in 1957, he en-
tered Kingston College, which was to prove pivotal 
in his young life. It was there that he came under the 
influence of the recently appointed headmaster, the 
much revered Douglas Wrexham Eric Forrest, affec-
tionately called “Dougs”. Mr. Forrest had succeeded 
the school’s founder and first headmaster Bishop 
Percival William Gibson (“Priest”) in 1956, and he 
was determined to maintain the enviable record of 
his mentor. In such an environment Calvin flourished 
in all endeavors he undertook, from academics to his 
much-loved sport of cricket, in which he represented 
K.C. on the 2nd eleven team.

Genesis of Nickname

For many years, members of KCOBA USA, Inc. pon-
dered on the genesis of his nickname “John Collie”, 
as it could not be gleaned from his given names, ei-
ther through abbreviations or distortions thereof. To 
be sure, he was given the nickname in 1957 by his 
close friend at K.C., Leroy Walford. As the story goes, 
Calvin was constantly in awe of the famed K.C. Old 
Boy and West Indies cricketer par excellence, O’Neil 
Gordon “Collie” Smith. Instead of directly copying 
O’Neil Smith’s nickname, Leroy appended the name 
John to permanently imbue the moniker “John Col-
lie” on our guest of honor.

A KCOBA USA, Inc. Icon

Calvin emigrated to the U.S. in 1968 and settled in 

Brooklyn, New York. He soon fell in love and married 
his soul mate Jacqueline, and both are the proud 
parents of six wonderful children He tried his hand at 
several enterprises before finally entering the exter-
minating/pest control and janitorial supplies business 
in 1984. In short order his business literally became 
a household name, and 28 years later his expertise 
and services are still the first choice of many home-
owners and businesses in Brooklyn and neighboring 
boroughs of New York City.

Calvin has never forgotten his formative years at 
Kingston College and the impact that such has had 
on his life. It was no surprise then that in 1984 he 
readily volunteered himself for service to the newly 
re-formed New York Chapter of the Kingston College 
Old Boys’ Association (KCOBA). He soon became a 
director of KCOBA and has the record for the longest 
serving member of its board. His accomplishments 
on behalf of KCOBA and his alma mater are exten-
sive, and include:
     •   Development and Implementation of the 
         Nutrition Program at K.C.
     •   Incentive Awards for Teachers
     •   Stationary and Other Educational Supplies 
          for Teachers
     •   Expansion of the School Necktie Program,
          Including Procurement and Shipment
     •   Creation of a Teachers’ Lounge at the North
          Street Campus
     •   Support for the Annual May Fair
     •   Employment of Young Old Boys
     •   Chairman of the Helping Hand Committee

As the years progressed, Calvin became the “God-
father” of KCOBA and often provided valuable coun-
seling to the general membership and board mem-

CALVIN CONSTANTINE
“JOHN COLLIE” HIBBERT
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bers. He was invariably central to re-stoking interest 
in the association when energies appeared sapped 
or disenchantment crept into our midst. Perhaps his 
most telling input was that of ensuring the integrity of 
the election of board members at the Annual Meeting 
of members. He was a sort of drum major in the mold 
of the late legendary Sidney Ignatius “Foggy” Bur-
rowes, and would spend countless hours encourag-
ing members to participate in the electoral process.

Humanitarian

Calvin’s humble and always-pleasant demeanor 
makes him a magnet for conversation with people 
of all walks of life. He epitomizes the legacy of Priest 
and Dougs, best manifested by his kindred Spirit 
and ever willingness to assist those less fortunate 
than himself, without the expectation of anything in 
return.

KCOBA USA, Inc. is extremely proud to have Calvin 
Constantine “John Collie” Hibbert as a Guest of Hon-
or at the 29th Annual Reunion and Awards Dinner.
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The Fortis Pavilion 
wishes to congratu-
late the Kingston 

College Old Boys’ Associ-
ation (New York Chapter) 
on the achievement of yet 
another milestone. Your 
29th Annual Reunion and 
Awards Dinner bears tes-
timony to the longevity of 
the camaraderie, loyalty 

and the sense of purpose, which have proven to be 
the hallmarks of an outstanding group of gentlemen.  
We salute you!
 
The Fortis Pavilion applauds the honourees, who 
we know have worked tirelessly to keep the KC flag 
flying high. Your commitment to the development 
of our beloved alma mater cannot be questioned. 
Therefore, it is with great pride that we say well 
done!
 
This year marks the 87th anniversary of Kingston 
College, and it is no secret that the Old Boys’ As-
sociation has been a central force in the preserva-
tion of the KC spirit and the Fortis fire, which have 
engulfed the Fortis Pavilion. The same fire which 
burns in your hearts and souls also burns in ours. 
We are all heirs to the spirit of our founding fathers, 
even if we choose to express it in different ways, or 
along different lines. When all is said and done, we 
are all from the same place, and the work we do 
redounds to the benefit of Kingston College – that 
noble institution that we all love.
 
Let no one deceive you, we are not heretics. We too 

have what many may call a ‘sacred subscription’ to 
the teachings and tenets of Bishop Gibson. You can 
rest assured that the Fortis Pavilion stands ready to 
work alongside the KCOBA or any other group for 
the betterment of Kingston College. In fact, we have 
members, including executive members, who are a 
part of the KCOBA. We have supported several ini-
tiatives spearheaded by the KCOBA, and the KCO-
BA has supported many of the programmes and 
projects that we have undertaken. We continue to 
extend an open invitation to members of the KCOBA 
to come to our meetings to fellowship with us.

Our key mission is to improve the network and net 
worth of all who have entered the hallowed halls 
of Kingston College. We welcome all! We exclude 
none!
 
Thank you for giving the Fortis Pavilion this oppor-
tunity to share another great moment with you, our 
brothers. We are extremely proud of all chapters of 
the KCOBA. We close by asserting that the Fortis 
Pavilion will continue to work hard so that years 
from now when the great history of Kingston Col-
lege is told, we too will have the honour of being part 
of that book.

Fortis Cadere Cedere Non Potest - The Brave May 
Fall But Never Yield!

Yours in service,

Wayne O. Robertson
President 
Fortis Pavilion
(on behalf of the Executive)

MESSAGE FROM THE FORTIS 
PAVILION
ON THE OCCASION OF THE KCOBA NEW YORK CHAPTER’S

29th Annual Reunion & Awards Dinner - “Celebrating Fortis who serve”
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NORMAN SCOTT
PRESIDENTIAL AWARDEE

The Honoree, Norman Scott was born in 
1938 in Kingston, Jamaica during a tumul-
tuous time of social and political change in 

Jamaica. 1938 saw the birth of our first political 
party and the cry for adult suffrage (the right of ev-
ery Jamaican to vote in parliamentary elections.)  
It is therefore no surprise that his parents Cyril 
and Ivy Scott named him after the two great lead-
ers of that era Norman after Norman Manley and 
his middle name Alexander after William Alexan-
der Bustamante.

The eldest of four children, Norman learnt from 
early childhood his responsibility first of all to be 
a role model to his younger siblings but also to 
be protective of them often looking out for their 
well-being even to the point of putting their needs 
before his own. As a teenager, when he and his 
sisters and brother attended parties he had to en-
sure that the four of them returned home together. 
His caring and protective nature for his siblings 
was further demonstrated when he made sure 
that his younger brother Karl was with him and at 
his side  as they returned home from that fateful 
outing in 1957 that ended in the disaster of the 
Kendal train crash.

Norman attended Mico Practicing Elementary 
School then went to Kingston College in 1951.  
Attending Kingston College was a turning point in 
his life. He had been christened in the  Presby-
terian  faith and attended St. John’s Church as 
a child,  but the impact of Bishop Percival Gib-
son and no doubt St. Augustine’ Chapel were so 
profound that he converted to the Anglican Faith 
to which he remains dedicated to this day. In Ja-
maica he attended St.George’s church on Duke 

Street in Kingston and in New York he is a faith-
ful member St. Luke’s Episcopalian church in the 
Bronx.

Norman spent many happy years at K C. He loved 
and respected the Bishop as well as Bishop Gib-
son’s deputy Mr. Douglas Forrest (fondly referred 
to as Doug’s.) Then there was Mr. J.A Crick. He 
would often recount many hilarious incidents in-
volving Mr. Crick and the boys. One of his favorite 
anecdotes was that one day a boy was being in-
attentive in Mr. Crick’s Latin class.  The boy was 
distracted by Charlie the donkey that lived on the 
school grounds. Mr. Crick decided to send the boy 
out of the class because he was not paying at-
tention, telling the boy in his Barbadian accent, 
“Charlie needs your company so you had better 
go outside and stay with him.”

On another occasion a boy used a slingshot to hit 
a teacher on the back of the neck while he was 
writing on the blackboard. The teacher did not see 
who did it and nobody owned up to it or acknowl-
edged that they saw who did it.  Bishop Gibson 
was called in and when he could not determine 
who had done it, Bishop Gibson caned all thirty 
two students in the form.  Such was the discipline 
at K.C.  Known to his friends as’ Kid Normie,’ Nor-
man has the distinction of bringing the class bully 
to his knees. The boy was twice his size and had 
picked on small Norman because he figured that 
he would be easy to beat up.  After Norman best-
ed the bully in the fight the bully was so ridiculed 
that his days of bullying came to an end.

Although not an athlete, Norman was very fond 
of sports.   He was an enthusiastic supporter of 
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Kingston College at the school Championships 
(Champs), especially when the ‘purple and whites 
‘dominated the sport continuously for 14 years. 
He was also at the forefront of the Manning Cup 
rivalry between KC and ’St. George’s which often 
resulted in the battle for ‘North Street.’ 

Norman had a special gift in solving mathemati-
cal problems. He was known for completing test 
papers that were set for one and a half hours in 

half an hour and of course every problem was cor-
rect.

After graduating from Kingston College Norman 
entered the Jamaica Civil Service where he served 
at the Collector of Customs as a Customs Officer 
for thirteen years before immigrating to the United 
States. He attended Baruch College from which 
he graduated with a BBA degree majoring in Busi-
ness Management. Norman continued his quest 
for further learning and successfully received ac-
creditation as a member of the “Institute of Real 
Estate Appraisers” He also received accreditation 
as a member of the “American Institute of Bank-
ers”. He worked for Chase Manhattan Bank in New 
York in the International division retiring after thirty 
two years.  He is president of ‘Men on a Mission’ 
a group at St. Luke’s church which is involved in 
Christian charitable work. He is also a member of 
the ‘Outreach’ ministry at his church that visits the 
sick and ‘shut-ins’ often taking hot meals to them.

His pride and joy are his daughters and grand-
child. One of his daughters is an accountant with 
a C.P.A. from the Wharton School at the Univer-
sity of Pennsylvania and the other is an attorney 
at law who graduated from Syracuse University 
and the University of Maryland. She is also the 
author of a book on financial management entitled 
‘Legal Aid Wealth.’

Although small in stature Norman has always 
stood tall in integrity, honesty and dedication 
working quietly behind the scenes for the good of 
Kingston College and for his fellowman. He has 
performed acts of kindness and charity to some 
of the more vulnerable among us without seeking 
praise or fame or reward for his good deeds. He 
has been a dedicated and loyal member of the 
Kingston College Old Boys Association, working 
tirelessly to maintain the high ideals of his alma 
mater.

And so we honor Norman our dear friend and 
colleague always remembering our school motto 
“Fortis Cadere Cedere Non Potest.’
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It is my distinct 
pleasure to ex-
tend my warmest 

greetings to Kings-
ton College Old 
Boys’ Association 
in New York as you 
celebrate your 29th 
Annual Reunion and 
Awards Dinner.  

When the first classes at “KC” began approxi-
mately 87 years ago in downtown Kingston, it was 
the founder and first headmaster, Right Reverend 
Percival Gibson’s intent to the making of Christian 
gentlemen sound in mind and body, achieving ex-
cellence in academics, prowess in sports, cultural 
knowledge in the arts,  and love of God and coun-
try.  How pleased he would be!  Your graduates 
have made outstanding contributions in various 
endeavors in these fields as you serve, share and 
“give back”. 

KCOBA in New York has realized the unique op-
portunity to play a vibrant and influential role in the 
school.  Combined with passion and commitment 
that only alumni posses, and despite the miles that 
separate you, your love remains kindled and fre-
quently stroked as you contribute to the develop-
ment of our young men and our nation.

Your theme for this year’s celebration – “Celebrat-
ing Fortis Who Serve” - is apropos to your selec-
tion of honorees.  I commend you on your selec-
tion and extend congratulations to Messrs Kelly, 

Hibbert and Scott, each of whom I have observed 
over the years.  It is fitting that these alumni are 
being recognized this evening for their respective 
service and achievements. I join you in welcoming 
your Guest Speaker, Honorable Damion Crawford 
and your special guests.

I take this opportunity to congratulate you for the 
assistance that you have provided to your alma 
mater, for the fellowship that you have encour-
aged between each other and other alumni asso-
ciations, and for your  commitment to our Union 
of Jamaican Alumni Associations (USA) Inc. and 
thus, to our Diaspora, our schools and our home-
land. 

Be assured of the continuing support of UJAA on 
whose behalf I extend best wishes for a successful 
celebration this evening and for many more years 
of continued success.

Karlene M. Largie
President

UNION OF JAMAICAN ALUMNI 
ASSOCIATIONS (U.S.A.) INC.
1452 President Street, Brooklyn, New York 11213 ~ 516.713.8270 
– http://www.ujaausa.org

Over Two Decades of ~ Dedication ~ Commitment ~ Service

Ivor A. Nugent, MD 
Board Certified

Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation 
Acute/Chronic Pain Management 

Sports Medicine 

1150 N. 35th Avenue, Suite 39D 
Hollywood, FL 33021 

Office 954-981-3341 
Fax 954-981-3476 
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GUEST SPEAKER: 
HON. DAMION CRAWFORD
MINISTER OF STATE, MINISTRY OF TOURISM 
AND ENTERTAINMENT

Damion Oronde Crawford was born on Octo-
ber 26, 1979 to George Crawford and Lena 
Braham.  He attended Oliver Prep School 

and Half Way Tree Primary before entering KC in 
September 1991.  Damion was more interested in 
the social rather than the academic side of school 
which did not augur well for good grades.  How-
ever, by the time the CXC exams came around he 
had settled down enough to get good grades and 
was awarded a place in the 6th form.  It was here 
that we began to see what his principal, Ivan John-
son described as “an intense ambition to succeed”. 
From that point Damion never looked back.  He 
was successful at his A Levels and was awarded 
the Tourism Scholarship to UWI.  He was very in-
volved in university life and served as the president 
of the Guild of Undergraduates on the way to get-
ting his Bachelor’s degree.

Damion went to work in the tourist industry but 
his heart was not in it and before long he returned 
to academia and later turned to politics where he 
rose to the presidency of the Peoples National Par-
ty Youth Organization.  The PNP chose him as a 
candidate in the December 2011 general elections 
representing the constituency of East Rural St. An-
drew. He won his seat becoming the first dread-
locked Member of Parliament. Damion wears said 
dreadlocks proudly in tribute to his father who was 
forced to shave his head and also to prove that: 
“You don’t have to trim to win”.

Today The Honourable Damion Crawford is Jamai-
ca’s newly appointed Minister of State in the Minis-
try of Tourism and Entertainment. He is no stranger 

to the field of tourism having pursued a teaching 
career in this discipline prior to his political appoint-
ment. Mr. Crawford has been a lecturer of Tourism 
Studies and Marketing Management at the univer-
sity level, lecturing at The University of the West 
Indies (UWI), the Mona School of Business, the 
University College of the Caribbean and Excelsior 
Community College. His career in teaching started 
some eleven years prior at the high school level 
teaching Mathematics. In addition Mr. Crawford 
has worked on tourism related projects in the ca-
pacity of a project consultant to the Jamaica Hotel 
and Tourist Association (JHTA) and the Jamaica 
Conservation and Development Trust. 

Minister Crawford was awarded both the M.S. and 
the B.S. degrees in Tourism Management by The 
University of the West Indies in 2005 and 2001 re-
spectively. His accomplishments include, research 
papers and conference presentations on “Con-
sumer side of Crisis”, University of Delaware/Utech 
conference on Tourism Management in May 2009; 
“Demographic Factors That Influence Tourist Des-
tination Choice”, Kdeaz Journal (Co-author) in Jan-
uary 2009; “Impact of Terror on Tourist Demand, 
presented at the Hotel and Catering International 
Management Association (HCIMA) conference on 
Security and Tourism” in June 2006.

Like many Fortis, Damion has never left KC.  He 
has served for many years as a mentor to younger 
students teaching them the same principles he has 
been instilling in his constituents, “you don’t have 
to bleach to reach”. 
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The History Of 
Hardie House

Paradise Pen Great House, Kingston, Jamai-
ca. This small but elegant 18th Century Pal-
ladian-style house was built between 1770 

and 1775 by Hercules Ross, a wealthy Scottish 
Merchant in Kingston, as his Country Villa just out-
side the City. Both Capt. Horatio Nelson (later Ad-
miral Lord Nelson) and HRH Prince William, Duke 
of Clarence (later King William IV) are said to have 
been frequent guests here. The next owner 
was Sir William Anglin Scarlett, Chief Jus-
tice of Jamaica from 1821 to 1831, who ap-
parently lived and entertained here in grand 
style. An Inventory taken in 1831 shows 
that the house was filled with elegant Geor-
gian and Regency furniture, French bronze 
lamps and large gilded Mirrors, fine Geor-
gian Silver and English China and lots of 
Waterford cut-glass. Sir William also had 
a superb Library of Leather-Bound books 
and a huge Wine Cellar stocked with hun-
dreds of bottles of vintage French wines. 

Sometime in the early 1850s Paradise Pen 
was sold to the Hon. Henry Forbes Colthirst 

(1821-1881), who renamed it Colthirst’s Pen. He 
was one of the richest British Merchants in Kings-
ton during the 19th Century and he also entertained 
on a lavish scale. In 1864 he gave a famous Re-
ception here for their Imperial Highnesses the Aus-
trian Archduke and Archduchess Maximilian and 
Carlotta Von Hapsburg, when they visited Kings-
ton while on their way to Vera Cruz to be crowned 
Emperor and Empress of Mexico. It was also here 
that a farewell Ball was given in 1866 for Governor 
Eyre on the night before he left Jamaica to return 
to England. In the 1870s Henry Forbes Colthirst 
sold Colthirst Pen to the Hon. Ivanhoe Gadpaille 
(1853-1929), a French Merchant in Kingston who 
was Honorary Consul for France, and the Estate 
reverted to the original name of Paradise Pen. 

In 1898 the Gadpailles sold Paradise Pen to their 
cousins the George family, another prominent old 
French family in Kingston, who were the found-
ers of of the Kingston Merchant firm of George & 
Branday. Arthur George subsequently changed 
the name of the Estate to Clovelly Park after Clo-
velly in Cornwall, England. The Villa miraculously 
survived the Great Earthquake of 1907, which 
destroyed most of Kingston, but expansion of the 
new suburbs after the Earthquake resulted in the 
subdivision of most of the Estate. In 1908 Arthur 
George decided to lease Clovelly House to A. Noel 

Sixth Formers pose for a picture on the steps of the 
ruined ruined Hardie House.
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Crosswell, who opened a small Private School in 
the Villa known as The Collegiate School. 

In 1914 Arthur George finally sold Clovelly House 
to the Anglican Church and in 1924 it became the 
new Rectory for the Kingston Parish Church. In 
the 1940s The Rectory became part of Kingston 
College and was renamed Hardie House in hon-
our of the Rt. Rev. Dr. William George Hardie, who 
was Anglican Lord Bishop of Jamaica from 1931 to 
1945. Threatened with demolition by a proposed 
building expansion project at Kingston College 
in 1955, Hardie House was narrowly saved from 
the bulldozers by the dedicated efforts of a small 
group of Historic Preservationists headed by the 
Historian Clinton V. Black. Unfortunately the Villa 
was later destroyed by a fire on the 19th of May, 
1977, and Kingston lost forever one of its finest 
examples of Colonial Architecture. 

From an Original Photograph by T.A.L. Concannon, 
1961. Collection: National Library of Jamaica.
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Howard Robertson Aris also fondly known as 
Howie, Fudge or simply Mr. A by many died 
on Thursday November 10th engaging in 

one of his fondest passion, that of political cam-
paigning on behalf of the Peoples National Party. 
He understood well the link between politics and 
sport even as he always kept the two separate. 
This enabled him to serve and advise govern-
ments on both sides of the political divide. 

His other great love was track and field, being an 
athlete and captain of the champs team at his alma 
mater, Kingston College. He later became coach 
and physiotherapist for the school team during the 
most successful period of its history. He subse-
quently served as a sports administrator and be-
came president of the Jamaica Athletics Adminis-
trative Association. It is no surprise that during the 
period of his presidency Jamaica has had one of 
the most successful periods in track and field at all 
levels internationally.

Howie respected the coun-
try’s athletes and believed in 
their abilities. It was always 
the athletes first and he al-
ways reminded us that with-
out them there would be no 
need for administrators like 
us. He believed that they 
“should not suffer the conse-
quences” (his words) regard-
less of what the issues were. 
Because of this he upheld an 
open door policy and was al-
ways available for them. He 
continuously encouraged, 
motivated and mentored 
those who came to him for 
assistance or advice con-
cerning not only their athletic 
profession but also what was 

happening in their personal lives. 

Although Howard was a man of kind words, he 
was very forthright and frank and was not afraid 
to voice his true feelings if he felt wronged, or if 
he felt strongly about a matter. This sometimes 
earned him the ire of those he was in discussion 
with, but once he got his point across that was it 
for him. There were never any ill feelings.

He leaves very large shoes to fill. He was a flu-
ent speaker, a generous and thoughtful man, a vi-
sionary, someone who was very passionate about 
what he believed in. He was loved and admired by 
many, and many sought his advice and wisdom. 
You could always depend on Howard for a kind, 
comforting or encouraging word regardless of the 
circumstances. Howard used to say, “Tomorrow 
is another day and the sun will rise once more”. 
Those words have remained etched in my mem-

Jamaica Athletics Administrative 
Association’s Tribute To Mr. Aris
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ory because in challenging times, it was what he 
would say to encourage me, and true to his word 
the sun always rose again.

Howard was greatly respected by his peers in the 
track and Field fraternity both locally, regionally 
and internationally. He endeared himself to many 
with his fighting spirit, charisma and gentlemanly 
qualities. He was a repository of track and field 
knowledge. We at the JAAA have lost a leader and 
friend whose style was all embracing, compas-
sionate and authentic. Very astute he could read 
between the lines and understood each and every 
one of us, always knowing how we would react to 
any situation. He would make sure that the bigger 
picture was envisioned, understood and embraced 
by all. The executive of the JAAA will do all in its 
power to ensure that Mr. A’s legacy will live on and 
that Jamaica will continue to reap successes at all 
levels in track and field. 
Howard was a genuine, loyal and true friend whom 
I have known for the better part of 43 years. He 
was a stickler for the truth and not afraid to tell you 

if you were wrong. He loved sports tremendously 
and had the greatest passion for track and field 
followed closely by his love for the PNP. He never 
missed a weekly meet and attended 2 and some-
times 3 meets each and every Saturday during the 
track season.
To his wife Sandra, children Shannon and Quentin, 
grand-daughter Neah and other family members I 
say take heart, your husband, father and grandfa-
ther, Howard was a tremendous human being and 
many benefitted from his views, thoughtfulness, 
kindness and gentle spirit.

Howard, “jump or run good my friend”. We will al-
ways remember you for all that you stood for, even 
your impatience in getting things done immediate-
ly in your last days. May your soul rest in peace. 
We have lost a dear friend, but Heaven has gained 
a true Angel.

By Dr. Warren Blake
FORTIS FOREVER!!!
November 22, 2011.
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KC CHAPEL CHOIR IN WASHINGTON DC FOR
START OF JAMAICA’S 50TH ANNIVERSARY EVENTS 

The Kingston College Chapel Choir will per-
form at the National Cathedral in Washing-
ton DC as part of the Jamaican Embassy’s 

first official event to commemorate Jamaica’s 50th 
Anniversary of its Independence.

This will be 
during the 
73rd staging 
of the Cathe-
dral’s Annual 
Flower Mart, 
a festival or-
ganised by 
the All Hal-
low’s guild of 
the National 
Cathedra l . 
Jamaica has 
participated 
in the festi-
val for sev-
eral years 
through Floral works by a team headed by Mari-
gold Harding, the Custos of St. Andrew. During this 
year’s event, Jamaica will be the ‘honored country’ 
and will showcase various aspects of its culture 
featuring flora, art, literature, cuisine and music.

The Choir was founded in 1947 to complement its 
newly built St. Augustine chapel and has estab-
lished itself as one of the leading choirs in the West 
Indies. It has recorded several LP recordings and 
CDs, the latest being “’Songs of Praise’, which had 
a successful release last October.
In 2005 under Choir Director Wayne Moore, the 
choir performed joint concerts with the Christ 
Church Cathedral Choir, Oxford to sold out audi-

ences at the Holy Trinity Cathedral and the Parish 
Church of St. Marks, Mandeville. In 2009 the choir 
led the singing at the closing Eucharist of the An-
glican Consultative council at the Cathedral of St. 
Jago De La Vega, Spanish Town, where the cel-
ebrant was Most Rev. and Rt. Hon. Dr. Rowan Wil-
liams, Archbishop of Canterbury.

Among it awards, it had the distinction of being the 
first West In-
dian Choir to 
be elected to 
the Guild of 
St. Nicholas 
by the Royal 
School of 
Church Mu-
sic. More 
recently, the 
Postmaster 
general hon-
oured the 
Choir by pub-
lishing a $60 
stamp bear-
ing a pho-

tograph of the choir in December 2010. In 2011, 
the choir achieved 2 distinctions and a merit on 
assessment by the Associated board of the Royal 
school of Music in choral singing.

The  Choir is comprised of students from all grades 
at Kingston College along with a core of dedicated 
old boys. They have rehearsals twice weekly and 
perform more than 40 times per year at Church 
services, concerts, school functions, weddings and 
funerals. They are led by choir director Audley Da-
vidson who continues to preserve the tradition of 
fine music started by Barry Davies and others .
The Kingston College Chapel Choir will be featured 
at a Gala Preview on May 3rd which will be a black 

PERFORMS AT ANNUAL FOWER MART
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tie affair. The choir will then perform during the 
opening ceremony at 10.00 am on May 4th along 
with  St. Alban’s Choir of the National Cathedral. 
Following this, the choir perform concerts at the 
cathedral in its role as a featured performer. Aud-
ley Davidson has selected some works by classi-
cal composers including Haydn , Bach and Rutter. 
However the choir will feature Jamaican music with 
Marley’s Redemption song and Peter tosh’s ‘Jah is 
my keeper’ both from its latest CD and arranged 
by Audley Davidson. Other Jamaican pieces will 
include a Grub Cooper/Peter Ashbourne  arrange-
ment of Jimmy Cliff’s ‘Many Rivers to Cross’, Folk 
songs with arrangements by Noel Dexter and Keith 
Rhodes as well as compositions by Noel Dexter 
and Lloyd hall.

The touring party will be 30 choristers, three teach-
ers headed by  vice principal Madam Hall, choir 
Manager hector Hall, Choir Director Audley Davod-
son and accompanist Ann McNamee who is the 
current head of the keyboard section at the Edna 
Manley school of Music. 

This trip to the National Cathedral, Washington 
DC has been possible through the invitation of the 
Jamaican Embassy in that city. Funding for airfare 
and hotel accommodations has been also arranged 
by the embassy. The School Board has in addition 
made funds available to help with other expenses. 
However, the trip would not be possible without the 
tireless efforts of members of the KCOBA of NY, 
who assisted by their colleagues in Canada, Atlan-
ta, Miami and Jamaica have managed to raise the 
additional funds required for this venture.

There have challenges in getting passports, visas, 
polo shirts and blazers. There are still some issues 
regarding ground transport and meals which are 
being addressed. The boys still have to deal with 
schoolwork and exams which will be in progress 
at the time of the trip. Despite all of this, the choir 
has been rehearsing regularly and have promised 
to make us all proud of them.

By Dr Robert Wan
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FOUNDER’S 
DAY SERVICE
By KCOBA USA Inc. at Calvary Tabernacle 
Church, April 22, 2012

This year`s Founder`s Day Service was held in 
Hempstead, Long Island at the Calvary Taberna-
cle Church, located at 78 North Franklyn Street. 
Having not visited a Church in a while, the thought 
of sitting through three hours of worship with my 
daughter was challenging. However, being a full 
blooded Fortis, attending a service in honor of KC 
and the late great Hon. Bishop Percival Gibson, Fa-
ther of my alma mater, was the Fortis thing to do. 
The forecaster had warned about heavy rains all 
day. As I bundled my four year old daughter safely 
into her car seat, it started to drizzle intermittently 
and a gentle breeze said hello to my purple and 

white tie now flopping in the wind.

By the time we arrived at our destination, the rain 
was coming down steady but light. The building was 
not your typical church structure. Nor was it plas-
tered with pictures and paintings of Jesus and his 
Disciples. I got the distinct feeling that one was left 
to paint their idea or image of their Lord and Savior. 
The architecture was modern and simple with very 
high ceilings, yet elegantly appointed. Purple and 
white was the dominant color scheme. The pulpit 
or stage was huge and the musicians were busy 
warming up for the 10:30 AM start. There was a 
large rectangular screen centered above the pulpit, 
which streamed power point salutations from a pro-
jector mounted in the center, high above our heads. 
We were ushered to special seating to the left; there 
I saw familiar faces, my brothers from the KCOBA 
fraternity - some young, others not so young. 

At the exact start time, the band erupted into songs 
of praise. As the teenaged choir sang, their bodies 
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moved with a sense of purpose and joy. Their faces 
were happy and seem to add extra lighting to the 
already luminous stage. Brothers to my left and to 
my right, sat rigid in the heavily cushioned seat, not 
sure if they should clap along with the congregants. 
Perhaps they were away too long and did not want 
to let go and admit the sensations that were per-
colating.  For men especially, those who were so 
called “rude boys” at North Street (now matured fa-
thers and husbands) showing any signs of religious 
commitment was terrifying. 

However, the subtle tapping of the feet later gave 
way to vigorous hand clapping that must have felt 
strange at first. After a while, the whole church was 
singing and clapping in unison. After about 15 min-
utes the singing stopped and there appeared on the 
screen, the Kingston College insignia and a mes-
sage welcoming the KCOBA to Calvary Taberna-
cle. Former KC head boy, Elder Wayne Haughton 
then stepped up to the podium and gave us a warm 
rousing welcome before handing over to another 
KC old boy, Senior Pastor, Rev. Barry Goldson. 
Barry recalled his days at KC and the very instance 
that changed his life and set him on a path that we 
are all proud of. It’s a common theme for the many 
youths who had passed through the hallowed halls 
of 2A North Street.

The Message

The lesson was taken from 1 Samuel chapter 30, 
verse 1:6. It was the story of David, in the City of 
Ziklag. The Almal`ekites had raided his compound 
and took all the women and children captive, in-
cluding David’s two wives. On his return to Ziglag, 
he found the ambers of a burnt-out City. David and 
his men were sorrowful and wept until they had 
no more strength to weep. David was very dis-
tressed; for the people spoke of stoning him, but 
David strengthened himself in the Lord. Then Da-
vid inquired of the Lord, “Shall I pursue after this 
band? Shall I overtake them?” The Lord answered 
him, “Pursue for you shall surely overtake and shall 
surely rescue.”

In typical evangelical style, Rev Barry dissected and 
injected the moral of the story, which was aimed par-
ticularly at us men, this is what he said in essence 
– “We are living in a very tough economy, men 
especially, are losing, their jobs, and their homes. 
Men are losing their wives, women and children. 
Some of us feels emasculated and are losing our 
minds. It’s tough and it’s also very stressful and be-
ing macho about our situation only make it worse. 
Sometimes a long hard cry is a good thing. David 
wept – so what? That did not make him any less of 
a man, he went on to become King. Sometimes we 
need to cry and let it all out. Recharge and move 
forward into the battle of life. The weak may fall but 
never yield. Move forward with a plan to take back 
your house. Reclaim our manhood, lead the family 
and protect our sons and daughters – “pursue and 
prevail” But most importantly, let God lead you into 
battle. We can never lose if God is on our side.”

After the service ended we were invited upstairs to 
a meticulously laid out banquet for the meet and 
greet. The purple and white theme again dressed 
the dining area and we were once again students 
at Kingston College, reliving the best times of our 
lives. Elder Haughton blessed the meal and we 
dined on a scrumptious and delicious Jamaican 
cuisine. We were treated royally. Rev. Goldson 
extended an open invitation to us - make Calvary 
our home away from home. President Perry of the 
KCOBA, thanked the Church for hosting the ser-
vice and for their hospitality.

It was raining heavily now as we headed out the 
parking lot. The message “pursue and prevail” had 
struck a chord deep within us all. Our founding fa-
ther Bishop Gibson, sensing a need, started Kings-
ton College with 49 students and the rest is history. 
It’s up to us KCOB`s to take the baton handed to 
us and run with it. There is still much work to be 
done. 

Are you in it? Well I guess – rah, rah, KC… Yes! 
Yes! Yes!

By Brian Morrison
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KCOBA New York Presents SAT 
Preparation Books To Members 
Of The Track And Field Team

On April 3, 2012, Rainford ‘Perry’ Bloomfield presented 
study aids for the Scholastic Aptitude Test (SAT) to 

members of the Track and Field team, on behalf of the 
New York Chapter of the Old Boys’ Association. Success-
ful completion of the SATs is one of the prerequisites for 
entry into the tertiary institutions in the USA, a path taken 
by many young Jamaicans, seeking an alternative to UWI 
and UTECH. In response to a request from the acting Prin-
cipal, Mr. Everton Burrell, the association rallied and was 
able to secure funding from a group of generous old boys 
for the purchase of several SAT preparation books, with ac-
companying DVDs. The students preparing for the exams 
were faced with several challenges; most notably the lack 
of up to date test preparation material. On the advice of Mr. 
Walker, Guidance Counselor on the North Street Campus, 
boys would go to the US Embassy Library to source the 
most current test preparation material. However, this situ-
ation was far from ideal because the students would make 
the journey to Liguanea only to find the books loaned out to 
students from Jamaica College; who had a distinct advan-
tage because of the close proximity of their school to the 

US Embassy. The donated books will be used by members 
of the track and field team who are in their final year; Mr. 
Walker has consented to manage the books so they will be 
available to other students in subsequent years.
By Earl Gordon 

Photographers to the Entire Family
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WEDDING PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEOGRAPHY • CUSTOM FRAMING, ETC.  

3572 White Plains Road (Between 212th & 213th Streets)
Bronx, New York 10467 
(718) 547-4200 
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George Summerville – Manager

Rainford ‘Perry’ Bloomfield, President Kingston College Old 
Boys’ Association USA, Inc. (left), presents copies of SAT 
preparation books to members of the track and field team. 
Mr. Channer, Sportsmaster (right), was on hand for the 
presention ceremony.
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“We are committed to serving you” 
A Digni ed Funeral Every Family Can Afford 

45 Years Serving Our Community 

Patricia Myers 
Manager

4035 Bronxwood Avenue 
Bronx, NY 10466 

(718) 231-7647 (24 Hours)            Fax: (718) 231-7665 

NOW WEBCASTING TO FAMILY AND FRIENDS ABROAD 
http://www.mccalls.net

WE JOIN IN CELEBRATING THIS 28TH

ANNUAL REUNION AND CONGRATULATE 
THE HONOREES 

Kingston College Old Boys’ Association, U.S.A.2011028th Reunion
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Our year started with a lot of promise of the over 50 
students who turned up for training in late September 

for the 3 age group teams we boasted an admirable group. 
After the dust had settled our U19 team comprised of 10 
upper six form students, making it a good mix of brawn 
and brains.
 
It was the best team assembled in a while, however, be-
cause of the competitive nature of the competition we lost 
only one game this season won 6 drew none and still end-
ed up 5th in the U19. The U16 was better but the lost their 
only game in semifinal to Tivoli in their bid to go 1 better 
this year. 
 
U14 action gets underway on April 25 with two games, this 
is our youngest and newest team and we expect a lot from 
them. Team captain Zachary Brown leads from the front 
and is the only player on the team with any experience, 
however newcomers Chevaun Stanley and Delroy McRae 
are two for the future and we expect a lot from them also.
 
Our positives continues as we currently have 8 players in 
the Jamaica U21 training squad which, includes our U19 
team captain n stand out player Kevaun Reid, Mark Coke, 
Rashad McCarthy and our U16 team captain Rjay Wal-
len at 15 years old. We continue to build as we work to 
get Kingston College back to the stage and status it be-
longs. We thank the Kingston College Old Boys Associa-
tion in New York, and Fortis Pavilion for their continued as-
sistance. Also, we recognize Mr and Mrs Shelby Sharpe, 
whose contribution was invaluable, the school and wider 
community who has continued to give their support, to that 
we say FORTIS FOREVER, FOREVER FORTIS
 
Rudolfo “Beaver” Johnston
Coach K.C. Hockey

Hockey Report
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The following summary provides a glimpse of the 
many sides of the man students and Old Boys af-
fectionately call “Mr. Johnno”. I know that I may risk 

chastisement from some when I say that none of Mr. John-
no’s predecessors have been more successful in their ten-
ure as principal of Kingston College. He is the third longest 
serving principal, albeit acting, after the late Bishop P.W. 
Gibson and Douglas W.E. Forrest. 

Teacher
As Department Head in 1966, his first batch of GCE A-
level students had a success rate of 100%. They included 
such famed individuals as Neville Garrick who did most of 
the artwork on the albums of the legendary Robert Nesta 
Marley, OM; Lloyd Lovindeer and Warren Chen-Shui, the 
successor to Mr. Johnno in the Art Department.

Mr. Johnno is highly sought after to teach Literature, be-
cause of the passion he displays and the inner knowledge 
and insights that he brings to the subject. He is an integral 
part in the preparation of the students for the CXC and A-
level Literature exams.

Sportsmaster
He held the Sportsmaster’s post between 1968 – 1975 
contributing to the school’s unprecedented run of 14 
consecutive years as Boys’ Athletics Champions (Boys’ 
Champs). His tenure as Sportsmaster is widely believed 
to be the most dominant period in the history of K.C.’s 
sports achievements. Indeed, the school won the Swim-

ming Championships repeatedly without the benefit of a 
functioning pool that many of our rivals took for granted. 
Coincidentally, the 14-year Boys’ Champs streak ended 
the year after Mr. Johnno stepped down as Sportsmaster.

He served as the unofficial manager of all teams and occa-
sionally coached the Colts football and cricket teams with 
great success. During his tenure, Mr. Johnno never missed 
a sporting event involving K.C., a standard that will not be 
easily replicated.

Peacemaker & Motivator
On many occasions he was called on to be referee or um-
pire for inter-form football and cricket competitions. The 
fierceness of these competitions was no less intense than 
the battles against rival schools, as house pride was not 
to be compromised. Mr. Johnno found himself in the midst 
of many disputes and each was settled with opponents’ 
egos fully intact, and with no one feeling belittled or embar-
rassed.

Many can recall the “pep talks” that Mr. Johnno gave his 
charges with his patented animation of arms emphasizing 
the points of the subject matter. He had the unique ability of 
stirring the self-confidence of even the most doubting ath-
lete, to the point where many were surprised at their own 
achievements. This was no more evident than in the feat 
of the late Owen Bruce, a runner with no heralded athletic 
prowess to his name; in staving off the challenges of pre-

Ivan “Wally” 
Johnson – 
Undeniably 
Fortis Forever
Extracted mainly from the 75th 
Anniversary School Magazine 
by Winston L. Stewart
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sumably much more accomplished athletes from Jamaica 
College and Calabar in the 800m leg of the Medley Relay 
Final at Boys Champs in 1972.

Innovator
Mr. Johnno’s amicable personality is a magnet for an as-
sortment of requests from every department at K.C., and 
he somehow has managed to fulfill all of them to every-
one’s satisfaction. Perhaps not too many are aware that 
he has spent long periods with the drama group providing 
technical advice and even assisting with costume designs. 
In the production of “Chanticleer” for example, thousands 
of rooster “feathers” were produced from crepe paper. On 
another occasion for the French Drama Festival, he cre-
ated a ‘window” from an old hurdle that was an integral part 
of the setup. This original thinking contributed to the school 
winning top honors in the festival.

Schools’ Challenge Quiz & Debating Coach

Mr. Johnno proved his all-round abilities when he provided 
valuable coaching assistance to the team in the pioneering 
years of the competition. In fact he was instrumental in the 
team’s victory in 1974 and was duly rewarded for his efforts 
when he accompanied the team on its prize trip to Trinidad 
in place of regular coach Ms. Frances Phillips who took ill.

He was also the coach of many of the debating teams that 
participated in the All Island Schools’ Debating Competi-
tion. He guided the teams to cleverly expose weaknesses 
in their opponents and the school developed an enviable 
reputation as the home of the island’s leading high school 
debaters. K.C. won the inaugural competition and several 
subsequently.

Chapel Choir Benefactor
Mr. Johnno is not known to be a singer of note, but he has 
never failed to lend his support to the chapel choir. In fact, 
he has only missed the choir’s performance when he has 
been off the island. He was involved with the staging of two 
of the most successful productions of the choir; namely, 
“Ahmal and the Night Visitor” and “Oliver”.

Maintenance Worker & Driver
Perhaps it is inconceivable for many to visualize a head-
master with beads of sweat dotting his forehead as a result 
of whitewashing walls or from janitorial repairs, because 
they have never encountered the likes of Mr. Johnno. 
Knowing very well that the meager government financial 

aid will not adequately cover the needs of the school, Mr. 
Johnno unashamedly has rolled up his sleeves to under-
take tasks that are outside of his role as headmaster. This 
trait sets him apart from the ordinary principal in Jamaica 
and makes him a special individual that is as rare as a blue 
moon.

Transporting teams can be a costly affair and, to offset the 
burden on the school’s coffers, Mr. Johnno has utilized his 
personal car to ensure that the students get to their des-
tination safely. He does this without tooting his horn, not 
so much to minimize attracting the police patrolmen’s at-
tention to his overcrowded vehicle, but because he truly 
believes in what he is doing. The only repayment that he 
has requested is that the boys represent the school and 
themselves with distinction and honor.

Thinker & Optimist
“Today’s Jamaica is fraught with much that is not very 
wholesome. The cry continues to be that the boy child is 
failing to live up to his true potential as day by day he con-
tinues to be marginalized. A school like Kingston College, 
a high school with such a rich tradition, has a specific role 
to play at this time.

Schools like ours must take advantage of the strengths 
that have been built up over the years. We must never lose 
sight of the vision of giants like Bishop Gibson and Doug-
las Forrest. And even if there are times of terrible social 
upheaval, and we do stumble, we shall thank God for this 
spirit behind our motto that stoutly bids us never to yield”. 
-  (Quote from Mr. Johnno’s message for the 75th Anniver-
sary of the school).

Overall Achievements of K.C.
As indicated at the outset, the school under Mr. Johnno’s 
tenure has been the most successful in its 78-year history. 
This is not based on idle banter or emotional bias, but on 
the historical data. Over the past three years the school 
has earned one of the top Jamaica Scholarships based 
on A-level results; it has consistently been in the top 5 in 
the Schools Challenge Quiz Competition; and, in sports, it 
has won more awards than any other school on the island, 
including the current 3-year streak in Boys’ (and Girls’) 
Champs.

Kingston College is Mr. Johnno’s life. He began his umbili-
cal link as a student in 1950 and for all practical purposes 
has never left his alma mater. He truly epitomizes the mod-
ern refrain “Fortis Forever, Forever Fortis!!”
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A Fiery Servant
Percival William Gibson (1893-1970)
 by Anthony Johnson

MAY 1, 1947 was a great day for all Jamaicans. 
In the Anglican Cathedral at Spanish Town, 
Percival William Gibson was consecrated as 

Suffragan Bishop of Kingston; the first time the honor 
had been conferred on someone of African ancestry in 
almost one hundred years. 
For Gibson it was merely another milestone in an illus-
trious career, which saw him proving beyond any doubt, 
the capacity of Jamaicans to achieve greatness. Most 
importantly, he demonstrated the practicability of living 
a clean, honest life, without any hint of scandal, while 
rising to the top ranks of civil and ecclesiastical life. 

Academic History 

Born September 15, 1893 to William and Louise Gibson 
at the Cavaliers Water Works in Kingston, he attended 

Mico Practising School 
and in 1907, won a schol-
arship to St. George’s 
College. His parents could 
not have afforded the 
fees. Young Gibson never 
received less than 90 per 
cent in any subject dur-
ing the four years before 

graduating and became one of the first black students 
admitted to St. Peter’s Anglican Theological College, 
again on a scholarship. Through private study, he be-
came the first Jamaican to gain the Bachelor of Divinity 
degree, later also gaining the B.A. and B.A. (Honors) 
degrees, all through external study. These were land-
marks, which inspired future generations of scholars at 
a time when the handful of black students who could 
qualify, studied either medicine or dentistry or law. And 
all had to travel overseas. 

Kingston College 

As a young curate, he developed a reputation as a hell 
fire preacher, at St. George’s Church on East Street, 
where he started outreach programs among the youth. 
Percival Gibson then developed the goal of working for 
the City of God through the training of young men of 
character, who would lift up the morals and lifestyle of 
the City of Kingston. His inspiration was the book “The 
City of God” by St. Augustine, an African Father of the 
mediaeval Christian Church. 
In 1925 his sister Gwendolyn and himself purchased 
the Rectory of All Saints Church on East Street, and 
on April 16, 1949, he enrolled the first 49 boys at the 
building which he renamed Kingston College. At the 
time, there were 20 high schools in Jamaica, with a 
total enrolment of about 1,000. By his death in 1970, 
Kingston College alone would have over 1,500 stu-
dents enrolled. 
 
From the beginning, Gibson made it known that the 
school was not ‘exclusive’, but would accept any boy 
whose parents could pay. Most of the other schools 
prided themselves on only taking ‘the right kind’ of stu-
dents, which was a justification for the class and race 
prejudice of the day. Nevertheless, his reputation as the 
country’s greatest classical scholar ensured a steady 
stream of students of all strata of society. 

The first two decades of K.C were a struggle; buoyed 
only by the motto ‘the brave may fall, but never yield’. 
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From 1949 to 1957, the school would win the Jamai-
ca Scholarship six times, and since it entered inter-
schools sports in 1928 it has won over 100 titles while 
producing West Indies cricketers and Olympic medal-
lists. Among other things, he proved that a ‘down town’ 
school, drawing heavily from the working class, could 
produce high-class scholars and sportsmen. 
Despite the heavy teaching schedule, Gibson main-
tained his duties as a priest, so it was no surprise that 
the Anglican Diocese was unanimous in electing him to 
be the assistant Bishop of Jamaica in 1947 with the title 
Suffragan Bishop of Kingston. When the Anglican Bish-
ops next met at Lambeth Palace in London, a black 
face appeared. It was the herald of the dawn of black 
men moving to center stage in the world. 

Lord Bishop 1955-1967 

In 1955, the Diocese was again unanimous in electing 
him as Lord Bishop of Jamaica, after a rump move-
ment had withdrawn the plea that Jamaica needed the 
customary English Bishop. He developed a reputation 
as Jamaica’s conscience, and was soon appointed to 
the Legislative Council, (the forerunner of the Senate). 
His theological brilliance flourished, and the Montreal 
Theological Institute made him a Doctor of Divinity. He 
was then the Rt. Rev. Dr. the Hon. Percival Gibson, 
D.D., C.B.E., B.D., B.A. (Hon), B.A, the first Jamaican 
to own these honors together. Gibson’s term as head 
of the Jamaican Church was one of brilliant achieve-
ment as he tore himself away from his beloved K.C. 

His main work was in expanding education in the is-
land, which became a state in 1962. He expanded all 
the secondary schools owned by the Anglican Church 
and in 1956 established the Diocesan Educational 
Trust headed by a big businessman, Eli Matalon, to 
spearhead the Church’s outreach, especially in rural 
areas. 

He also founded Bishop Gibson High School in 1962 
and Glenmuir High School in May Pen in 1958. He also 
conceived an Anglican Teachers College, which be-
came Church Teachers College in 1965, and encour-
aged the formation of basic schools. In his youth, Per-
cival Gibson had been vitriolic in his sermons against 
other denominations, but as Bishop, he became a pio-
neer in the call for ecumenism. Perhaps the capstone 
of his effort was the founding of the Union Theologi-
cal Seminary at the UWI, through the amalgamation 
in 1966 of the Anglican St. Peter’s, the Methodist Cae-

nwood, the Presbyterian St. Colme’s and the Baptist 
Calabar Theological Colleges. 
In 1958 he re-established the Church Army in Jamaica, 
as a militant lay force, especially to work in depressed 
areas, and re-established the Order of Deaconess in 
1957. 

Bishop Gibson became a national symbol during his 
lifetime. To the end his fiery sermons criticized any as-
pect of political, civil or social life, which he felt, was 
unbecoming. He was particularly harsh on immoral be-
havior, and called for reform, often stating: 
“Kingston is the wickedest city on Earth”. 
In his lifetime no one ever dared to challenge him, but 
he never received a Jamaican civil honor. He resigned 
his duties in 1967 and passed away on April 3, 1970. 
 

Editor’s Note:
The article first appeared in the 12th February 2003 edi-
tion of the Jamaican Daily Gleaner. It is re-printed with the 
kind permission of the author, Senator Anthony S. John-
son, himself a proud K.C. Old Boy, who came under the 
tutelage of Bishop P.W. Gibson at K.C. Only minor editing 
has been done.
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Calvin Hibbert 
Exterminating Company, Inc.

• Odor Control  • Commercial 

• Industrial  • Residential 

Licensed by N.Y.S. Dept. Of Environmental Conservation

1596-98 Nostrand Ave, Brooklyn, NY 11226

Collie Hibbert, Manager  • Tel: 718-469-9474
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Sydney Ignatius (Foggy) Burrowes attended 
Kingston College (K.C.) between 1943 and 
1947. An outstanding student, he represented 

his school in soccer and   was captain of both   track 
and cricket. He was involved in every phase of school 
life. Many believe that he was the most influential stu-
dent to wear the school’s colors; purple and white.
On joining the school staff he became sports master 
and later history teacher until polio struck. He returned 
to teach history in 1954   and later on sold life insur-
ance and   published a   sports magazine..
Many stories are told and written about him and his 
theories. But it was his motivational talks, attitudes and 
schemes that affected every boy at KC, in his time. 
He encouraged his students to write poems and plays 
praising KC and Jamaica. and never ceased seeking 
to convince them that each one could become a great 
person. In later years, he organized the “Faculty” of 
old boys who coached the school’s track   team to a 
remarkable fourteen (14) year victory run.

The New York Years

Foggy arrived in   New York in 1981 and soon resumed 
his old callings of coaching and teaching .In his spare 
time, he traveled from function to function to discover 
what organizations could mean to those back home. 
That thinking lead to a variety of fundraising events 
and the policy of giving back was clearly established. 

Towards the end, he admitted to being stricken by the 
“Joseph Syndrome: Just as Joseph sent back corn 
from Egypt to Jerusalem, so I will try to send back what 
I can to Jamaica and K.C.
Foggy walked with the aid of metal braces to his legs, 
which seemed to propel him almost effortlessly. One 
had the impression of a man in constant motion, who  
seemed unaware of his impairment. He was a man of 
action, a man always moving his causes, and his soci-
ety forward.

He was the New York (KCOBA USA) president in its 
formative years. At the beginning, it was a one- to- one-
approach. Foggy took the initiative building a mailing 
list and traveling from function to function for the cause 
of the Association. After the collective    formed   and 
New York State incorporation was obtained, he stepped 
down as President   in 1984 . He reasoned that the job 
of president called for a certain level of   responsibility   
and attention, which he could no longer provide..
Foggy was at the helm when the Association honored 
Douglas Forrest, when the KC Chapel Choir toured the 
United States and when we first donated gears to the 
track team. 

KCOBA USA is only one of many   organizations which 
benefited from his efforts. He was proud of his native 
land and wanted Jamaicans to be a proud people, so 
he joined with other organizations for causes other 
than KC. In particular he sought to ensure Jamaica’s 
presence at world athletic events.
For the many old boys, to whom he regularly talked, his  
presence and talks were  a personal and direct con-
nection with the past.: always encouraging and always  
motivating .  With his passing KC and Jamaica lost one 
of its most compelling symbols- a symbol showing that 
people can inform themselves, propose, dream, reach, 
build and succeed in making a part of their world a bet-
ter place.

As a public person, it was his ability to understand his 
world, respond and influence it in a positive way that 
most endeared him to many. He taught history and was 
the consummate historian. He sought to better the lives 
of others and truly believed in the interdependence of 
mankind. No Man Is An Island, NO Man Stands Alone 
(Francis Bacon) He made it the theme of his farewell 
address at Tardis on October 19, 1986. 

By Errol G Lecky

Remembering   
SYDNEY IGNATIUS 
(Foggy) BURROWES

(1928 - 1987)
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“While my faith and the convictions there from offer hope even in physical death, it is still difficult to even contemplate 
Derrick’s departure from our midst. If only because it was so sudden. I will miss his quiet but determined maintaining 
of positions of principles that were important to him and our organization. He is possibly one of the best examples of 

how our alma mater created a special kind of person out of the material and substance we know as Jamaica.”
WINSTON BARNES 

 “Ivor! You no see de yout can play football”… and so began my son’s love for football initiated by “Mr. Derrick” as 
Omari calls him.“Mek sure you have Guinness a you yard, a dat me drink!!”

The memories are countless and we miss you… FORTIS!!!
IVOR, KERSTENE, CAMILLE AND OMARI NUGENT

Rennie, you left us too soon but God knows all things, misses you dearly!  – RIP
DENISE “DEN DEN” CLARKE

Rennie, loved life, lived life but I know for sure he loved God – RIP Brethren
CLINTON “FATMAN” CLARKIE 

“Rest in peace my brother, Fortis” 
NORMAN SCOTT

“It was all good as long as it lasted brethren” 
RICARDO “BELLO” BELLNAVIS  

“Only God knows”
JOSEPH “CHARMAN” REYNOLDS

“Life may be short but the spirit lives forever… guidance”
ANSELL BARRETT

Renny, left us too soon but with everlasting memory Fortis Forever. 
Audley “Fern” Patterson

Sometimes it is not how long we live on this earth that matters, but how we live and what we did during our 
sojourn on earth that sets us apart from others. Some people step into your life and leave an imprint on your heart, 

one that never goes away. Rennie was such a person, and this is why I have undertaken to remember and honor him. 
His light will burn on in all the people he left behind

DANNY RHOOMS

 Tribute 
DERRICK C. ERRAR

(“Renny” “Shango”)
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“Though the body is gone, the indomitable PURPLE spirit lives on. Sleep on dear brother” 
ALTON “DANNY” ERRAR

Rennie:  Bouy, some people will do anything to make sure that they get churched at KC Chapel, 
and get buried in Jamaica. I don’t know whether you love KC more than Jamaica or Jamaica more than KC; but one 

thing I know and that is I love you man, and I’m gonna miss you. RIPP (Rest In Purple Peace.) “One Love”
KEITH “HAPPY” HOLGATE

May your Soul find Rest, you loved life we sadly miss you!
HERMAN DUHANEY

Rennie, we met for a short time but the memories of you will last forever
ANGIE GRANT

Derrick Charles Errar -
Undoubtly committed to his alma mater Kingston College and Jamaica, Derrick’s immediate family was also very 

dear to him. He made every effort to be present at all family gatherings , notably  graduations, Thanksgivings. 
I need not mention his love for music and soccer, and I have fond memories of the Shangai disco days 

and the sessions at Jazz Hut.
Derrick, Rene, Shango, Sarge, You are dearly missed.

(WENDELL F. MARTINEZ)
WENDELL “ROCKY” MARTINEZ 

Derrick “Renee”, “Shango”, Errar a friend and brother. Forever respected and his genuineness always cherished. RIP. 
Fortis Forever

DENZIL “PEPSI” KETTLE

IN LOVING MEMORY OF RENNIE ERRAR; CLASSMATE, TRUE FRIEND & KC STALWART. 
“We miss you in so many ways. 

We miss you each and every day. 
And when old times we do recall 
It’s then we miss you most of all” 
LOUIS & SONIA RUDDOCK

And it came to pass that it was that time when the faithful would converge on the city of Tampa, heeding the call of the 
Purple nation. And numbered amongst them was one Shango, aka Renny, aka Derrick from the house of Errar. And we 
did feast and make merry, concluding with a deep slumber at the Courtyard of the house of Marriott. Rising after the 

sun, we journeyed to break our fast with spouses in tow and broke bread together one last time we did. And a great cry 
went out among the nation to celebrate his passing. And so we gathered in multitude on sacred ground and did enter 

unto the house of St Augustine where we remembered the family man, the community advocate and a Fortisan who was 
the embodiment of the true purple and white spirit. God speed as you embark on your new journey. 

Fortis forever, 
KENNETH “KENG” GORDON 

Shango your sudden passing has sent emotional shockwaves among friends and love ones here and abroad. But, while 
such turbulence may leave many in wonderment, your loss I cannot quantify as I reflect on the good times and the down 
times in my life experience, most of which you share even my personal travails of which you were a pillar of strength- 

Study partner, a professional colleague, comrade, occasional drinking partner in New York and Florida etc
Your ability to always give a hand in time of need, your  calm and objective approach to problem solving  we will 

cherish in your memory. Yet, you were a talent I did not fully know and now will never know. But, I am reminded of the 
words of a famous poet Gibrand who says “ When your friend leaves you, grieve  not because those things that you 

admire most in him shall be clearer in his absence as the mountain to the climber is clearer from the plain”   
Rest in peace my brethren…

NOEL “WALLY” WALLEN

Thanks to the KCOBA NY family for this tribute to husband.
LOVE HARRIETT  
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Kingston College School Song
By Vivian Virtue

Who would be truly brave must be
Men not afraid to fight and fall
Hearts that unshrinking venture forth
Obedient to the restless call
Of God and country and of truth
In burning faith and abounding work
God gives us such courageous youth
As never shall that challenge shirk.

Not for the swift alone the race 
Nor for the strong the battle’s cry
Not every hero bears the palm
Where ringing plaudits fill the sky
God makes us such as in the fight
Though thrown upon the adverse field
Rise up in God’s courageous might
The brave that will not ever yield.

Sung to the tune of “Jerusalem”.

Fortis Prayer
By Brian Morrison

Father we come to you
Solemnly praying for guidance.
Lead us dear Lord and Savior
To a higher level of understanding
And discipline. Perpetually open 
Our hearts to your teachings.
Give us faith to believe in what
We can accomplish and wisdom
When pondering each difficult task.
Bless our deliberations and 
Inspire hope, knowing our 
Work shall not be in vain.
Bless each of us present
As well as those absent with reason.
Remove all tension within
And amongst us dear Lord
So that charity – God’s greatest gift
Will abound in our hearts,
And in our souls, Forever Fortis
Amen

Jamaican Pride
  
National Anthem
Eternal Father bless our land,
Guard us with Thy Mighty Hand,
Keep us free from evil powers,
Be our light through countless hours.
To our Leaders, Great Defender,
Grant true wisdom from above.
Justice, Truth be ours forever,
Jamaica, Land we love.
Jamaica, Jamaica, Jamaica land we love.

Teach us true respect for all,
Stir response to duty’s call, strengthen us the weak to
cherish, Give us vision lest we perish.
Knowledge send us Heavenly Father,
Grant true wisdom from above.
Justice, Truth be ours forever,
Jamaica, land we love.
Jamaica, Jamaica, Jamaica land we love.
Listen to the national Anthem

National Pledge
Before God and all mankind, I pledge the love and loyalty of 
my heart, the wisdom and courage of my mind, the strength 
and vigour of my body in the service of my fellow citizens; I
promise to stand up for Justice, Brotherhood and Peace, to
work diligently and creatively, to think generously and
honestly, so that Jamaica may, under God, increase in beau-
ty, fellowship and prosperity, and play her part in advancing 
the welfare of the whole human race.

National Song
I Pledge My Heart
I pledge my heart forever
To serve with humble pride
This shining homeland, ever
So long as earth abide.
I pledge my heart, this island
As God and faith shall live
My work, my strength, my love and
My loyalty to give.
O green isle of the Indies,
Jamaica, strong and free,
Our vows and loyal promises
O heartland, ‘tis to Thee.
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The New York Chapter continues to be an integral 
part of the school’s welfare. They remain one of the 
chief financial contributors to the Student Affairs 

Services at Kingston College.  Their input includes contri-
butions to the Scholarship Funds, Nutrition Programme, 
Maths Club, the Chapel Choir and Gifton Wright, our Na-
tional Spelling Bee Champion.

SCHOLARSHIP 

Our scholarship awardees continue to perform extremely 
well. The thirty students range from grades 7 to 13.  The 
impact of this assistance on the lives of these students is 
priceless. Included in the thirty students are four recipi-
ents of the Wilson Saunders Scholarship. Seven of these 
boys are preparing to sit the CSEC examinations and are 
all expected to perform very well. 

The top achievers in grades 8 and 9 are awardees: Tor-
rain Findley and Kadeem Campbell respectively. Also, an 
outstanding 5th Form student/awardee, Charles Gentles 
is a member of this year’s School’s Challenge team.

The Nutrition Programme

Without the Nutrition Programme many of our students 
would have a high absenteeism rate. On average, forty-
five students are provided with lunch each day. They also 
perform creditable.

As you can see the donations given to the school is well 
spent and has impacted our students’ lives in a positive 
way. The fact that these boys all perform well after the 
various interventions is a testimony of the invaluable as-
sistance you are making to the school and country at 
large.

JOYCE BAXTER MATHS CLUB

In its third year, the Kingston College Joyce Baxter Math 
Club has been making strides. Sponsored by the KCOBA 
New York Chapter, we hope it has lived up to their expec-
tations. Founded in memory of Mathematics teacher ex-
traordinaire Joyce Baxter, the club’s purpose is not only 
to have boys actively engaged in Mathematics but also to 
give them an expanded experience to the subject beyond 
the limits of their classroom. Within this environment it is 
also desired that the club produce student leaders.

The club can boast that some young men have demon-
strated these leadership qualities as they run the club 
under the supervision of the club advisors. Under the 
leadership of outgoing President Oswald Robinson, there 
were many enriching activities in which members were 
involved. However, as he prepares to matriculate, that 
baton has been passed to new President and New York 
Chapter awardee, Jordan Crawford.  He has not hesitated 
in proving himself an asset to the club. Young and full of 
ideas, within the first couple months he established a face 
book page. This page offers ‘Math Teasers’ and is used 
to keep members and fans up-to-date on club activities. 
On this page, (http://www.facebook.com/pages/Kingston-
Colleges-J-Baxter-Maths-Club/217167321680057) you 
may also find the club’s motto and pledge. 

The twenty active members continue to be engaged on 
Tuesdays and Thursdays. We are awaiting the results 
from the University of The West Indies Mathematics 
Olympiad. We anticipate that some of our members will 
perform will in this annual mathematics competition.
 
It has been a great year as the boys continue to strive 
for excellence. Though we have lost a few members, we 
can boast that this year has seen a dedicated set of boys. 
They have expressed ideas of how the club should prog-

Contributions from the 
New York Chapter of 
Kingston College Old Boys
School Year 2011-2012

Gifton Wright, Spelling Bee Champion, receives a 
Check from Robert Kelly, to defer training expense, 
surrounded by Acting Principal Everton Burrell, 
Gifton’s Mother and Vice Principal Margarita Hall

From left to right are teachers Katwanshe Thompson, 
Joan Malcolm and Carmeta Cameron-Sinclair
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ress in the upcoming year. The success of this club is 
fuelled by the collaboration of dedicated young men and 
the sponsorship from the KCOBA. 

THE KINGSTON COLLEGE CHAPEL CHOIR

The renowned Chapel choir has also reaped benefits from 
the Chapter’s generosity. The choir is set to perform at the 
National Cathedral in Washington where Jamaica will be 
the honoured country this year.  They hope to showcase 
some of Jamaica best talents during its 50th anniversary 
celebrations. 
 

In order to ensure that the ‘college’ is well represented on 
this international stage, the choir needed additional uni-
forms and funding for incidentals. The fundraising activi-
ties spearheaded by the KCOBA have allowed the school 
to feel at ease sending these young men to a foreign land.  
They should be immaculately attired and properly fed dur-
ing the period May 2 to 6, 2012. 

We applaud the diligence of the KCOBA (New York) as 
you continue to strive to keep the Kingston College flag 
flying high. We hope that the countless students who 
have excelled because of your relentless efforts to pro-
vide the school with well-needed assistance will motivate 
you to continue your support. We remain forever grateful 
for your contribution to your Alma Mater.

Fortis Forever

Marguerita Douglas Hall
Vice-Principal 
Melbourne Campus
April 18, 2012
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A Report On The Under 16 And 
Under 19 Basketball Season

The 2001-2012 season had an inauspicious start with 
inconsistent attendance by the players especially 
with the Under-19 players which almost forced the 

withdrawal of the team from the Southern Conference. 
However, we must commend the dedication of the small 
core group that was able to spark a renewed dedication 
of the rest of the team which culminated in the great per-
formances in the All Island Championships.

The Under-16 team consisting mainly of graduates of the 
2011- Southern Conference and All Island Championship 
Under 14 team performed well throughout the season and 
had creditable performances and must be commended. 

There is an expectation for a much improved 
performance during the next season (2012 
– 2013).

In general both squads were affected by the 
lack of appropriate conditioning work inclu-
sive of basketball fundamentals and weight 
training and commitment by some players. 

Under- 19 Team Performance  
Southern Conference Championships

During the preliminary rounds of the South-
ern Conference Championships the team 
had a record of eight (8) win to one (1) de-
feat and advanced to the quarter-final round 
where the team played St. Andrew Technical 
High School and was defeated 33 – 50. 

The team was thus relegated to the play off 
for third & fourth place in the Southern Con-
ference where the team was again defeat-
ed by St. Georges College 45 -50 thereby 
claiming fourth position in the conference. 
Our Co-captain Damian Johnson was run-
ner-up for the Most Valuable Player Award 
for the Southern Conference and was the 
winner of the award for the best Free Throw 
shooter. 

All Island Championships

The start of the All Island Championship 
saw the debut of Turks and Caicos Islander Clifton Jean 
after a successful appeal to the Inter-Secondary School 
Sports Association (ISSA) with respect to the restriction 
on his eligibility due to his transfer from a school in his 
native country.  Jean’s introduction had immediate effect 
on the team’s play, making notable contributions in each 
game he played.
Our fourth place position in the Southern Conference 
Championships required the team to travel to each of our 
opponent’s ‘Home’ court.   On the way to the finals we had 
the following results: 
     i.Defeated Spot Valley High School  76 - 31 

By Dennis Thompson
Overview

Under19 Team Members All Island Champions
Back row: Kamar Scott, Romaine Blair, Yohan Grant, Alex Saunders, 
Co-captain Damian Johnson, Lloyd Mason, Akyle Hylton & Clifton Jean 
(in Khaki) • Front row: Nicolas McClaulsky, Zaavan Richards, Co-captain 
Andre Helps & Kadeem O’Sullivan.
Coaches (Absent): Winston Harvey, Marland Nattie & Dennis Thompson
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         (in Montego Bay)
     ii. Defeated Christiana High School  59 – 55 
         (in Mandeville, Manchester) 
     iii. Defeated Hydel High School  50 -49 
         (at The National Stadium)
In the finals at the National Stadium the team met Knox 
College of Manchester on 2012 March 05, the team main-
tained control for most of the game withstanding late ral-
lies by Knox College to win 57 – 47. Clifton Jean led the 
team scoring   with a game-high twenty four (24) points 
and was well supported by co-captain, Damion Johnson 
with twenty (21) points, twenty five (25) rebounds and 
seven (7 steals. 

The Most Valuable Player Award for the All Island Cham-
pionship was won by our Co-captain Damian Johnson for 
his consistent high level of play throughout the champion-
ships. 

MVP -All Island Championship & Top Free Throw Shooter 
Southern Conference - Damian Johnson

Under- 16 Team Performance 
Southern Conference Championships

During the preliminary rounds of the Southern Confer-
ence Championships the team had a record of seven (7) 
wins to one (1) defeat. And progressed to the quarter fi-
nals where the team defeated Meadowbrook High School 
48 – 25 and advanced to the semi final round. The team 
was defeated by St. Catherine High School 33- 50 was 
thus relegated to the play off for third & fourth place in the 
Conference. The team defeated St. Jago High School 38 
-36 to claim the third place position in the conference.

All Island Championships

Our third place position in the Southern Conference 
Championships required the team to travel to each of our 
opponent’s ‘Home’ court if that team’s   relative position in 
their conference was higher than the teams in the South-
ern Conference.   On the way to the finals the team had 
the following results:  
     i. Defeated Old Harbour High School  71 - 36 
        (at GC Foster College St. Catherine)
     ii. Defeated Glenmuir High School  62 -23 
        (in Mandeville, Manchester) 
     iii. Defeated Knox College  43 -34  
         (at The National Stadium)

In the Finals, the team came up against Munro College 
(Munro) who had defeated Southern Conference Cham-

pions Ardenne High School  in the  in the semi-final. The 
team started well and led in the first quarter 14 -11, a 
poor performance of 14 -21 in the second quarter was 
the team’s undoing and Munro was able to withstand the 
team’s rallies in the third & fourth quarters and survive to 
win 61 – 54.

Zachary McLeod   led the team scoring   with a fourteen 
(14) points along with seventeen (17) rebounds and he 
was supported by co-captain, Jamie-Hugh Brown with 
thirteen (13) points and seven (7) steals. 
 
Under16 Team Members 
Runner-up All Island Championships
Shemar Brown-Wright, Jamaine Bennett, Daniel Mar-
tillier, Malcolm Lumsden, Malique Bignall, Daveyan Hill, 
Travis Morris, Zachary McLeod, Dennis Gray, Jakiem 
Robinson (Co-captain) Jamie Hugh Brown (Co-captain) 
Malik Pusey, Akyl Parchment, Tajeem McDermot.

We wish to thank the following entities/persons for their 
support during the season

KCOBA Florida Chapter for    – Electronic Score Board, 
Protective Padding for the Basketball Supports, Basket-
ball shoes 
    
KCOBA NY Chapter for   – Basketball shoes 

• Parents Ms Carole Becford & Cheryl-Ann Rodney   - for 
their gift of towels and water bottles respectively
• Parent Mrs. Karen Lumsden - for providing lights for the 
courts and its environs.
• Sports Master Noel Channer & Old Boy Larkland Able   - 
for making the travelling arrangement and providing sup-
port during our trips to the team’s away games.
• Students: Chevaldo Davidson, Vijay Gregory, 
• Bedard Badal   & Darian Dyce who performed Table Of-
ficials duties throughout the season
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OUR HONOREES THROUGH THE YEARS
1982 Douglas Forrest (Former Headmaster)

 Dr. Lennox “Billy” Miller (Dentist and Former Olympian)

1983 -------------------one year hiatus--------------

1984 Carlton Bruce (Former Deputy Headmaster)

 Hon. Oswald Murray (Canadian High Commissioner)

1985 H.E. Keith Johnson ( Jamaica’s Ambassador to the U.S.A.)

 Edward MacDonald (Former Bursar & Math Teacher)

1986 Sidney “Foggy” Burrowes (Teacher, Scholar, Sportsman, Phi-
losopher)

1987 ------------------transitional year---------------

1988 George Thompson (Former Sportsman)

 Mrs. Sylvia Barber (Science Teacher)

1989 Michael Holding (former West Indian Cricketer)

 Maurice Wilson (Music and Language Teacher)

1990 Eldon “Shrubs” Forrest (Chairman, K.C. board of Governors)

 Gresford Jones (Attorney and Benefactor)

1991 Jefferyson “Jeff” Barnes (Radio Personality)

 George “Peter” Jograj (Benefactor)

1992 William “Mr. G” Goldsmith (Physical Instructor)

 Neville “Teddy” McCook (Former Athlete and JAAA president)

1993 Howard “Fudge” Aris (Physiotherapist & Sports Administrator)

 Dr. Oran Atkinson (Dentist & Philanthropist)

1994 Hon. Eli Matalon, O.J. (Politician and Philanthropist)

1995 Bishop E. Don Taylor (Former Headmaster & Episcopalian Vicar 
Bishop of NYC)

 Cecil Satchell (Retired Head Industrial Arts Department)

1996 Rt. Hon. Michael Manley (former Prime Minister of Jamaica)

 Helen Douglas (Acting Vice-Principal)

1997 1964 & 1965 Soccer Teams, Manager, Coach & Trainer

1998 Dr. Hugh Wilson (College Professor)

 Dr. Basil Wilson (Provost of John Jay College of Criminal 
Justice)

1999 Mrs. Opal Branche (Head of Chemistry Department)

2000 Trevor “TC” Campbell (All-time Great School-boy Track Star)

 Rev. Canon Gervais Clarke (Community Leader)

 Mrs. Shelia Hoo-Sang (Guidance Counselor)

 Mabricico “Mauve” Ventura (Great All-round Sportsman)

2001 Anthony Johnson (Author and Member of the Jamaica Senate)

 Lanzell Williams (Groundskeeper)

2002 Keith Bryan (Vice Principal)

 Howard “Juicy” Bell (Former Manning Cup Star & Manager, 
Reggae Boyz)

2003 Ivan “Wally” Johnson (Acting Principal)

 Hon. N. Nick Perry (Member New York State Assembly)

2004 Audley Hewett (Businessman and Philanthropist)

 K. Churchill Neita, QC. (Former Sportsman, Attorney & 
Philanthropist)

2005 Donald Bookal, (Philanthropist)

 Stratton Palmer (Coach and KCOB Executive)

2006 Dr. Rainford Wilks (Former Athlete, Professor of Medicine, 
Philanthropist)

 Mrs. Francis Coke (Former English Teacher and School 
Challenge Coach)

2007 James Norton ( Jimmy) Richards (Former Athlete, Coach, Phi-
lanthropist)

2008 Lyndie Headley (Former Athlete, Coach and Philanthropist)

 E Molotov (Molo) Walker (Businessman, Philanthropist & KCOB 
Executive)

 Trevor Rhone (Playwright, Actor, Director, Former Speech & 
Drama Teacher)

2009 Keith Daley (Former Basketball Player, Coach and Mentor) 

 Winston Harvey (Former Basketball Player, Coach & Executive)

 Errol Lecky (Philanthropist & KCOB Executive)

 Maurice Lewis (Former Basketball Player, Coach & Mentor)

2010 Winfred “Freddie” Green (former Athlete, Coach, Sports 
Administrator) 

 Woodburn Miller (former Headmaster, Educator, Trust Fund 
Chairman) 

Kingston College Old Boys’ Association, U.S.A. 201128th Reunion

Fortis Cadere Cedere Non Potest • The Brave May Fall But Never Yield Page - 61

2011    Howard Barrett (Singer, KCOBA USA Inc Executive, Philanthropist)
            Winston “Merritone” Blake (Music Pioneer, Turn-table Genius)
            Franklyn “Frankie” Campbell (Singer, Performer Record Producer 
             and Philanthropist)
            Patricia ‘Miss Pat’ Chin ( Co-founder of VP Records, Record Producer
            and Philantropist)
            Highland ‘Dobby’ Dobson OD (Singing Sensation and Author)
            Maureen Lewis (Head of History Department)
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A C D B S P O R T S M A S T E R
B E E C R D E F G F H I R E A P
J D T K L A M E N O O P Q A R O
S E I T U V V W X R Y Z A C B W
C R R D I O C E S E D C E H F E
D E I I K J K S L V M H N I O R
E P P E Q R A S T E U O V N W F
B I S H O P Z F O R T I S G A U
A N X Y Z A A B C D E R F E G L
T O H I G E N T L E M E N L J K
I I K M N L O P T Q R S T P U V
N N S W A T X Y Z E E T A R U C
G U T Y A T S B T C R U D U E L
F E O G L A T I N H V N I P J E
K R R L W B M X N F O U N D E R
O Y Y L L E V O L C P Z Q A R K
FOREVER
ROYAL
DIOCESE
CURATE
BRAVE
BATTLE
PURPLE
FOUNDER

DEBATING
SPORTSMASTER
CHOIR
BISHOP
LATIN
GENTLEMEN
CLOVELLY
CEDERE
TEACHING

CLERK
PATTERN
EVOKES
SPIRITED
POWERFUL
REAP
PASS
REUNION

FORTIS FIND-A-WORD
By Ziggyman

1. KPAR
2. STDENUT
3. ARVEB
4. PPLOARU
5. XAME
6. PMOE
7. OOTBLFAL
8. RWKO
9. VEREN
10. RAOYL

Scramble

... The dynamic force was made visible by its color ...

Unscrambe the words and use the encircled letters (in exact order) 
to solve the phrase below. 

By Ziggyman

4 3 2 1
6 2

9 7
1 3 2

2 9 6 1
9 5 4

7 3
1 4
8 5 3 9

Sudoku

Each row, each column, and each 3x3 box should contain the numbers 1 - 9. 
No number is repeated. Try not to guess as there is zero margin for error. It works
best with logic. So, put on your thinking cap and let’s go !

mindgames
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KCOBA USA INC.
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Fiscal Year 2010
Temporarily .

Revenues, Support & Other Gains Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

KINGSTON COLLEGE OLD BOYS' ASSOCIATION (USA), INC.

DETAILS OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2011
(In Whole US Dollars)

--------------------Fiscal Year 2011-----------------------

Expenses By Function
Grants & Programs:
Grants and Aid to Kingston College:
-Student Grants & Scholarships 5,307 8,450 13,757 13,644
-Athletics Program 618 4,593 5,211 9,322
-Nutrition Program 4,749 4,749 3,541
-Prize Giving & Awards 1,863 1,863 3,091
-Cadet Corp 0 0
-School Repairs 8,284 176 8,459 850
- Chemistry Lab Renov 14,366 14,366
- School Challenge 398 398 0
-Math Club 1,577 1,577 599
Donations - Organizations 2,161 2,161 2,006
Assistance - Individuals 1,000 1,000 1,738
Assistance - KC 2,601 2,028
Assistance - Cricket 1,154 1,154 1,066
Assistance - Hockey 0 1,415
Assistance - Rugby 351 351 342
Assistance - Football 1,468 1,293 2,761
Assistance -Misc
-Trust Fund 7,810 7,810 7,795

24,456 43,763 65,618 47,439
Special Grant:
-Noel Rhudd Memorial Fund 87 87 500

Total Grants & Programs 24,543 43,763 65,705 47,939
General & Other Expenses
Admin Expenses 3,903 3,903 1,731
Meetings & Travel 140 140 2,933
Bad Debt Expense 0 0
Postage 702 702 574
Gain/Loss on conversion 264 264 60

Total General & Other Expenses 5,009 0 5,009 5,298

Total Expenses 29,551 43,763 70,713 53,237

NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 17,525$ (4,618)$ 15,508$ (15,822)$
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Fiscal Year 2010
Temporarily .

Revenues, Support & Other Gains Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Special Events Revenues:
 - Journal Ads 11,540 11,540 9,435$
-Reunion Dance 25,076 25,076 15,350$
-School Dance 26,970 26,970 10,485
 -Boat Ride 7,130 7,130 -
Soccer Tournament 2,100 2,100 550
-Raffle 8,890 8,890 3,981

81,706 - 81,706 39,801
Membership Revenues:
-Membership Dues 4,888 4,888 3,505
-General Contribution 2,128 2,128 2,760
-Breakfast Program 2,300 2,300 4,792
-Athletics 4,755 4,755 3,900
-Science 1,580 1,580 700
     Chemistry Lab Renovation 12,197 12,197
-Scholarships 8,450 8,450 4,500
-Cadet Corp 0 -
 - School Repairs 2,053.00 2,053 350
 - Sch Challenge 0 -
Kingston College Development Trust Fd 7,810 7,810 7,795

7,016 39,145 46,161 28,302

Merchandise Sales 26,432 26,432 13,896
Misc  Income 0 250

Total Revenues, Support & Other Gains 115,154 39,145 154,299 82,249
Direct Costs of Revenues
Special Events Costs:
-Reunion Dance 30,540 30,540 26,392
-School Dance 10,023 10,023 7,142
Boat Ride 4,655 4,655
-Soccer Tournament 1,175 1,175 480
-Raffle 3,915 3,915 1,673

50,308 0 50,308 35,686
Mechandise Costs of Sales 17,770 17,770 9,148

Total Direct Costs of Revenues 68,078 0 68,078 44,834

          Gross Revenues, Support & Gains 47,076 39,145 86,221 37,415

KINGSTON COLLEGE OLD BOYS' ASSOCIATION (USA), INC.

DETAILS OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2011
(In Whole US Dollars)

--------------------Fiscal Year 2011-----------------------
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2,011 2,010
Cash Flows from operating activities
Net Income/ Loss 12,907$ (15,875)$

Adjustments to reconcile net Income to 
net cash provided by operating activies 

Change in Accounts Receivable (5,521) 4,575
Add decrease in Inventory For Sale 4,759 (12,865)
Increase in Prepaid Expenses 330 (1,030)
Increase in KCDF Paryable 600 0
Decrease in Accounts Payable (8,967) 9,368

Net Cash provided by Operations 4,108 (15,828)

Net increase <decrease> in cash 4,108 (15,828)

Cash Balance at Beg of Period 7,994 23,822

Cash Balance at End of Period 12,102$ 7,994$

KINGSTON COLLEGE OLD BOYS' ASSOCIATION (USA), INC.

(In Whole US Dollars)
For the twelve Months Ended May 31, 2011

Statement of Cash Flow
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Year Ended Year Ended 
May 31, 2011 May 31, 2010

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 12,102$ 7,994$
Accounts Receivable 7,941$ 2,420$
Inventory For Sale 12,693$ 17,452$
Prepaid Expense 1,000$ 1,330$

Total Current Assets 33,736$ 29,196$

Total Assets 33,736$ 29,196$

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Current Liabilities
KCDTF Payable 600$
Accounts Payable 401$ 9,368$
Total Current Liabilities 1,001$ 9,368$

Total Liabilities 1,001$ 9,368$

Fund Balance 
 - Unrestricted 12,420$ 5,105)($
- Restricted 20,315$ 24,933$
Total  Fund Balance 32,735$ 19,828$

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 33,736$ 29,196$

KINGSTON COLLEGE OLD BOYS' ASSOCIATION (USA), INC.
Balance Sheet
May 31, 2011

(In Whole US Dollars)
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THE KINGSTON COLLEGE DEVELOPMENT TRUST FUND

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2011 DECEMBER 31

Restated
2011 2010

Note $ $
Operations

Income
Interest and dividends 3 3,004,026 4,235,570
Other operating income 12 62,979 -
Total operating income 3,067,005 4,235,570

Expenses
Secretariat costs 130,788 133,769
Telephone 55,587 48,913
Postage & courier 31,273 67,726
Printing annual reports 172,738 247,557
PR and advertising 42,000 -
Stationery & supplies 25,093 39,224
Meeting room costs 29,300 8,000
Travel 122,757 117,873
Registration fees 8,000 6,000
Audit fees 200,000 184,000
Bank charges 6,640 2,260
Depreciation 1,539 28,036
Foreign exchange loss - 262,160
Loss on sale of investments 109,863 -
Total operating expenses 935,578 1,145,518

Operating surplus for the year 2,131,427 3,090,052

Other Income and Expenses

Currency Translation Adjustment
Unrealised net gain (loss) arising during period 24,101 ( 28,185)

Holding Gain/(loss) on Available for Sale Securities
Unrealised net gain (loss) arising during period 880,320 193,928

Net other income and expenses for the year 904,421 165,743

Net income for the year 3,035,848 3,255,795
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Page 3 
THE KINGSTON COLLEGE DEVELOPMENT TRUST FUND 

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE) 
 

 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2011 DECEMBER 31 
 
 
 Operating Revaluation Development Capital 
 Fund Reserve Fund Fund 
                                                          Note $ $ $ $ 

Restated     
2010     

Balance at 2010 January 1 5,736,285  (   830,170) 3,529,160  39,263,715  
     
Transfer approved at AGM (5,736,285) -  -  5,736,285  
     
Contributions -  -  451,100  2,302,248  
     
Net income (restated)                            3 3,090,052  165,743  -  -  
     
Transfer from surplus for the year  (1,617,305) -  1,617,305  -  
     
Expenditure on approved projects                -                 -  (1,374,517)                  -  
     
Balance at 2010 December 31 1,472,747  (   664,427) 4,223,048  47,302,248  
     
 
 
 

2011     
Balance at 2011 January 1 1,472,747  (   664,427) 4,223,048  47,302,248  
     
Transfer approved at AGM (1,472,747) -  -  1,472,747  
     
Contributions -  -  -  1,656,758  
     
Net income 2,131,427  904,421  -  -  
     
Transfer from surplus for the year ( 2,063,180) -  2,063,180  -  
     
Expenditure on approved projects                -                 -                 -                   -  
     
Balance at 2011 December 31       68,247     239,994  6,286,228  50,431,753  
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THE KINGSTON COLLEGE DEVELOPMENT TRUST FUND 

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE) 
 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

2011 DECEMBER 31 
 
 

 

 
1. IDENTIFICATION 

 
The Kingston College Development Trust Fund is incorporated in Jamaica as a company limited by 
guarantee and not having a share capital. Under the guarantee, the liability of each member is limited to 
$1.00. 
It has the objects: 

 to further the development of Kingston College in its goal to foster academic excellence, 
development of character and good citizenship 

 to assist in the advancement of religion and the relief of distress in the Kingston College community. 
 
The principal activity of the company is the maintenance of a fund, the income of which is designated to be 
used for the benefit of Kingston College. 
 
By order made on 1986 July 14 the company was declared an Approved Charitable Organisation under the 
Income Tax Act. By order made with effect from 1999 May 11 the company is exempt from Income Tax. 

 
 
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS). They are expressed in Jamaican dollars. 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  
Actual results could differ from these estimates. 
 
The following specific accounting policies that materially affect the measurement of operating activities and 
the financial position are applied. 
 
 
Recognition of Revenue 
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the Trust’s investment 
activities.   
 
Interest income is recognised in the statement of income and expenses for all interest bearing instruments 
on an accrual basis using the effective yield on the actual purchase price. Interest income includes the 
interest earned on fixed income investments and accrued discount or premium on investments purchased 
at prices other than the face amount. 
 
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. 
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
1st June 2011 – 31st May 2012

In God We Trust

First we must acknowledge God’s merciful kind-
ness for sparing our lives and allowing us to be 
part of this 29th reunion of KCOBA USA Inc.  We 
are aware that he has preserved us through no 
goodness of our own but because of his loving 
kindness and tender mercies.  For what we have 
been able to accomplish we offer him thanks.

Individuals

There were many individuals who provided finan-
cial, physical, moral and material support to KCO-
BA during the fiscal year. The list of individuals is 
very extensive making this medium most impracti-
cal. However, KCOBA USA Inc,, the students fac-
ulty and staff are most grateful for your assistance.  
Without your support the many successes that we 
enjoy would not be possible.

We also wish, through this medium, to express our 
deepest gratitude to all K.C. Old Boys and their 
families; supporters; friends; and, well wishers of 
KCOBA, for facilitating our efforts to help Kingston 
College and keeping alive the dream of our found-
ing Headmaster, the late Bishop Percival William 
Gibson.  

We are mindful of the energy and  enthusiasm our 
new board members have brought to the asso-
ciation and look forward to the immediate future 
when they will take their rightful place at the helm 
of KCOBA USA Inc. 

Businesses

KCOBA again received significant support from 
the business community this year and we are in-
deed very appreciative. In turn, the Board strongly 

encourages all members of KCOBA and their fam-
ilies and friends, to patronize them frequently. We 
know these are challenging economic times and 
we appreciate their loyalty.

Joint Effort By The Associations

We are proud of the partnership that has been 
forged with all our North American Chapters. We 
have maintained open and honest dialog all year.  
We have worked jointly on numerous projects.  We 
have kept each other informed on all our proposed 
activities and we have not been shy to seek help 
from each other when the need has arisen. We ex-
pect that this coordinated effect will continue and 
the bonds that we have forged will transcend our 
generation. Jointly with the Jamaican Chapter we 
modernized the Chemistry Lab.  We are grateful to 
old Byron Bachelor who was most instrumental in 
sourcing the funds the resort and improve our Pa-
vilion. We hope to build on the strong relationship 
that currently exists between our associations.  To 
that end we believe that when we meet here a year 
from now the school will have at least one new 
school bus, the second floor of the Douglas For-
rest Building will be completed and we will have a 
new Principal at the helm of our great institution. 

Spouses & Families 

Being a KCOBA board member has many atten-
dant responsibilities and without the support of 
spouses, companions and children it would be 
difficult to fulfill our obligations. We thank you for 
your love, patience and understanding.

Fortis and best wishes
KCOBA Board of Directors
Rainford “Perry” Broomfield, President
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